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COUNTY OF WALDO
COUNTY DIRECTORY AND COUNTY OFFICERS

FOR 2003

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS® COURT

Jethro D. Pease, Chairman.................... o Morrill
John M. Hyk. ... Prospect
Charles G. Boetsch ... Lincolnville
Barbara L. Arseneau, County Clerk.............o.oooiiii i, Belfast

Meetings are held the second Tuesday of each month except August and December when
meetings are held on the third Tuesday.

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DIStHCt AOIMEY . ..o e Geoffrey Rushlau

Deputy DIstrict AtOIMeY. ... Leanne Zainea
TREASURER

T aSUTT . e e e, David A. Parkman

D epULY T ASUTET .ottt e Karen J. Ward

Register of Deeds. ... Deloris A. Page
DepUty Re@ISter. .o Stacy Grant

JUBEE. .o Randolph Mailloux
Register of Probate. ... Joanne M. Crowley
Deputy ReGISIOr. ... et e Sharon L. Peavey

Probate and Civil proceedings: Hearings are scheduled on the second Wednesday of each month in
the Waldo County Probate Annex or as otherwise agreed among the interested parties.



EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

DIl O . oo e e Richard Famis
Gl . Gloria E. Curtis
ClerK . Robert N. Lestha

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

N o= B | ST PPP Scott L. Story
Chief DUty . o Robert Keating
Jall AdminISITator. .. oo Raymond Porter

WALDO COUNTY BUDGET COMMITTEE

District #1

Philip Crosby.......coooo 28 Durham St., Belfast, ME 04915

Thomas Nolan. ..o 188 Main St., Lincolnville, ME 04849

Fred Porter. .o e 127 Pendleton Pt. Rd., Islesboro, ME 04848
District #2

Samuel Butler. ..o P.O. Box 152, Winterport, ME 04496
Ronald Cook, Sr...ooii P.O. Box 562, Searsport, ME 04974

Bill Sneed.......oooviiii 38 Moody Rd., Prospect, ME 04981

District #3

James Bennett.. ..o 63 Berry Rd., Thorndike, ME 04986

Ed GEOrge. ..o oot Box 636, N Ridge Rd., Montville, ME 0494

Charles Picard........oooovviiiei i PO Box 416, Unity, ME 04988



LAWS OF THE STATE OF MAINE
REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED - TITLE 30-A

SECTION 3. EXPENSE ACCOUNTS TO BE UNDER OATH

Whenever required by law to provide a bill of expense, every county officer shall itemize
the bill and swear, before presenting it for auditing or payment, that it includes only
actual cash spent in performing the officer’s official duties.

SECTION 183. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STANDING

At the end of each year in cooperation with the commissioners, each treasurer shall make
a statement of the financial condition of the county and publish in pamphlet form a
reasonable number of copies for distribution among its citizens. This statement must
show in detail all money received into and paid out of the county treasury, including a
statement of detail of:
. Unclaimed Inheritances. All sums received under Title 18-A, Section 3-914;
2. Division Among Accounts. The division of money among general, special and
capital reserve accounts and the amounts remaining in each account,
3. Federal Funds. All federal funds received; and
4, Tacts and Statistics. Other facts and statistics necessary to exhibit the true state
of the county’s finances, including the number of week’s board and expense of
clothing furnished prisoners.

SECTION 952. ANNUAL REPORT - Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 178,§3
SECTION 952-A. AUDIT REPORT

1. Report contents. The report required pursuant to section 951, subsection | must
contain the following items:

A. A management letter;
B. A letter of transmittal;
C. The independent auditor’s report on the financial statements; and

D. All financial statements and all other information required by governmental
accounting and financial reporting standards.

2. Copies for distribution. Copies of the report must be deposited in the county
commissioners’ office or a convenient place of business for distribution to the
public and must be distributed to each municipality in the county.



3. Copies open for inspection. Copies of the report and all county records must be
kept in the county commissioners’ office and must be open to the inspection of the
public during vsual business hours.

Article 7. Waldo County Budget Committee
SECTION 851. PURPOSE

The purpose of this article is to establish in Waldo County a method of appropriating
money for County expenditures, according to a budget, which must first receive approval
of a Budget Committee. This article amends the statutory method in sections 2, 701 and
702 by transferring the authority of Waldo County legislative delegation and the
Legislature to approve the Waldo County budget to a committee comprised of Waldo
County and municipal officials. This article applies only to Waldo County.



YEAR: 2003
COUNTY TAX - BREAKDOWN
TAX COMMITMENT (approved by Budget Committee)
AMOUNT TO REDUCE TAX LEVY
OVERLAY
TOTAL TO BE ASSESSED TO TOWNS

AMOUNT TO BE RAISED
§ 4,523,796.00

OVERLAY OBTAINED AS FOLLOWS:_

$ 5,077,597.00
$~ 590,000.00
$+4 35,872.00

$ 4,523,796.00

VALUATION TAXRATE
$ 2,580,600,000.00 0.001753
$ 4,523,796.00 divide by $ 2,580,600.00 =.001753

including $ 35,872.00 overlay

TOWN

BELFAST
BELMONT
BROOKS
BURNHAM
FRANKFORT
FREEDOM
ISLESBORO
JACKSON
KNOX
LIBERTY
LINCOLNVILLE
MONROE
MONTVILLE
MORRILL
NORTHPORT
PALERMO
PROSPECT
SEARSMONT
SEARSPORT
STOCKTON SPRINGS
SWANVILLE
THORNDIKE
TROY

UNITY
WALDO
WINTERPORT

UNORGANIZED - LASALE AND leTTLE BERMUDA

VO 2y 2ems
A e <, 7

TAX COMMITMENT

$ 1,064,860.00
$ 62,319.00
$ 67,228.00
$ 91,419.00
b 76,518.00
$ 45,403.00
$ 531,334.00
b 36,900.00
$ 56,008.00
$ 113.,419.00
$ 381,365.00
$ 80,989.00
$ 71,873.00
5 63,985.00
$ 321,764.00
$
)
b
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
)
$

144,009.00
44,088.00
147,165.00
293,453.00
167,324.00
109,563.00
54,606.00
56,358.00
118,766.00
65,738.00
256,289.00
1,052.00

$ 4,523,796.00




ESTIMATED REVENUES FOR
THE COUNTY OF WALDO DEPARTMENTS

FY 2003
District Court, State of Maine $ 64,136.00
Emergency Management Agency $ 38,399.00
Jail - Corrections $ 75,000.00
Surcharge $ 9,000.00
Board 3 1,000.00 $ 85,000.00
Registry of Deeds - Fees $ 250,000.00
Transfer Tax $ 48,000.00
Interest 3 250.00 $ 298,250.00
Probate Court $ 42,000.00
Sheriff $ 45,000.00
Interest $ 12,000.00
Miscellaneous $ 1,500.00
Employee Benefits $ 4,000.00

Total Estimated $ 590,285.00



WALDO COUNTY BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2003

ODEPARTMENT PERSONAL CONTRACTUAL COMMODITIES DEBT CAPITAL TOTAL
SERVICES SERVICE OUTLAY
1000 DISTRICT COURTHOUSE $ 1228200 | § 43,486.00 { § 8.700.00 | 3 - S 475001 $ 64.943 00
1010 EMERG. MGT. AGENCY 3 51.468,00 | $ 1536000 | $ 6,00000 |3 - $ 397000 % 76,798 Q0
1015 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 3 77.501.00 | $ 31.550.00 | $ §,200.00 | $ - $ 205000 | % 117,301.00
1020 COUNTY COMMISSIONERS $ 87.901.00 | $ 91,33000 | § 5250.00 | 5 - 3 99,670.00 | $ 284,201 00
1025 TREASURER 3 33,000.00 | § §,50000 | $ 320000 | $ - $ 250.00 | $ 42,950 00
1040 SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE $ 1228200 $ 4868400 | $ 12,800.00 | 3 - $ 475.00 | $ 74,241 00
1050 JAIL $ 702.764.00 | § 18048200 | § 11277400 | $ - $ 42613.00] % 1,047,633.00
1065 REGISTRY OF DEEOS 3 110,058.00 | § 68,375.00 | $ 5950001 $ - $ 2817900 | § 212,562 00
1070 PROBATE COURT $ 117.510.00 | $ 25.300.00 | § 6,135.00 { $ - $ 15,000.00 | § 183.945 00
1075 SHERIFF $ 596,732.00 | § 9990000 | § 39,373.00{ $ - $ 111,117.00] 5 847,122.00
1076 REG. COMM_JDISPATCH $ 506.822.00 | $ 4297500 | $ 20.683.00 | $ - $ 35,200.00 | 605,68.00
1080 ADVERTISING/PROMOTION $ 850000 | 3 - 3 - 3 - $ 6.500 00
1090 AUDIT 3 - $ 5,00000 | 3 - 3 - $ - $ 5.000 00
1095 DEBT SERVICE $ - 3 - $ - $ 87.00000($ - $ 87.000 Q0
2000 INTEREST $ - 5 55,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ 55,000 00
2005 U. OF M. EXTENSION S - 3 3966500 | $ 682500 | $ - 3 3.900.00y % 50,390 00
2025 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3 - $ 92745600 | $ 200.00 | $ - $ - $ 977,656 00
2035 W. C. SOIL & WATER $ - $ 1967500 | $ - $ - $ - $ 19,675 00
TOTAL $ 2,308.320.00 | § 1.716,288 00 | § 23409000 | § 87.00000 ( § 34289900 ] § 4,8688.597 00
Reserves as voted by the Waldo County Budget Committee

Emergency Shelter $ 1,000.00

LEPC % 15.000.00

County Planning $ 60,000.00

Future County Land/Buildings $ 35,000.00

Technology $ 35,000.00

Severance $ 8,000.00

Employment Security $ 10,000.00

Equipment Service 3 8.000.00

Maine Slate Retirement $ 217,000.00

Total 2003 including Reserves $ 5,077,597.00




STATEMENT A

COUNTY OF WALDQ, MAINE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

Governmental Fiduciary Account
Fund Types Fund Type Group Totat
General {(Memorandum
General Agency Long-term Debt Only)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents b 1,029,172 § 124423 3 - 3 1,153,601
Accounts recelvabie - 4,255 - 4,255
Due from other governments 10,588 - - 10,588
Due from ather funds 39,048 - - 39.048

Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term debt - - 788,071 789,071
Tota! assets $ 1078808 $ 128,684 § 788,077 § 1,996,563

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 48,027 % - 3 - 8 48,027
Due 1o other governments - 53,644 - 59 844
Due to other funds - 39.048 - 39,048
Defecred cevenue 75,000 - - 75,000
Deposils held for others - 29,992 - 29,992
General obligation bonds payable - - 420,000 420,000
Liability for Maine State Retirement - - 227,041 227,041
Liability for compensated absences - - 142,030 142,030
Total liabilities 123,027 128,684 789,071 1.040,782
FUND EQUITY

Reserved for capital 207,562 - - 207,382
Reserved for aclive accounts 81,913 - - 91913
Reserved far restricted expenditures 181,403 - - 181,403
Unreserved - undesignated 474,903 - - 474,903
Total fund equity 955,781 - - 955,781
Tolal iabdities and fund equity ) 1,078,808 3 128684 § 789071 § 1,996,563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemeant.



Waldo County Office of the Sheriff
ANNUAL REPORT
2003

OUR MISSION: To provide the best possible services in Corrections, Law Enforcement
and Civil Service in a professional, courteous and fair manner 1o improve the Quality of
Life in Waldo County while maintaining public trust and support.

To the Honorable County Commussioners and Citizens of Waldo County:

[ present to you the Annual Report of the Waldo County Office of Sheriff. With
this report, as always, I provide figures of activity by your patrol, corrections and civil
divisions. While the statistics provide a snapshot of the activity your officers perform
over the year, they do not reflect services provided outside the traditional responsibjlities
of the Office of Shenff.

Regarding the traditional services, the staff at the jail booked and bailed
approximately 1200 inmates in 2003. This number was up {rom the previous year by
about 116. We continue to struggle with the State’s mental health system for assistance
with the all too many individuals with serious mental health problems who find their way
into our jail. Over population and some serious incidents that occurred in 2002 prompted
the Department of Corrections to review the operations at the jail and ultimately remove
our variance from 33 inmates to 19. With the promise of physical plant improvements to
the facility, increased staffing, more community corrections programming and
progression towards a permanent solution, the DOC allowed us a new varnance of 32
inmates. This variance is short term and will be reviewed again in January of 2006. In
the mean time we find ourselves making improvements on our aging facihty. We have
also contracted the services of Volunteers of America (VOA) for pretrial and post-
conviction release services. VOA has saved the County a substantial amount of money
already this year, however, the number of inmates continues to climb. All of the plans
necessary to maintain our variance are in place, however a larger facility continues to be
needed. The failure of the Jail Bond was clearly a set back in this process however it
cannot be the end. Recent meetings with Town Selectmen through out Waldo County are
generating a new commiltee to re-examine the jail situation and come up with a plan for
the future needs of the Jail and Sheriff’s Office. 1remain optimistic that a solution can
be found.

The Patrols and Investigative divisions responded to over 10,000 calls for service
last year while the majority of these calls for service were responses to public requests,
many of them were self-generated by the officers themselves during their routine patrols
when they observed some incident that required intervention or assistance. Drug use,
sale and manufacturing in our County remains at epidemic levels. With the collaborative
effort of Detectives from this agency, MDEA, Belfast Police and the Maine State Police,
we continue to aggressively pursue the drug dealers in an effort to clean up our County.
Icis a difficuit battle but we aren’t giving up.



Civil service continues to be as busy as ever with three part time civil deputies
running straight ahead (o keep up with the ever increasing work load of civil papers to be
served through out the County. A back log of civil orders of arrest prompted us to come
up with special patrol details to caich up and mamtain prompt execution of these orders
as well. We are finding it quite successful to date.

[ can’t emphasize enough how the success of this Office continues to be the result
of the hard work and dedication of the staff here. [ have never seen a group of
individuals step up to the plate in the face of adversity as these people have. Our aging
complex here certainly doesn’t lend much for morale; however these people don’t let it
get them down. They continue to work diligent}y for the citizens of this County,
understanding that we are in fact YOUR SHERIFF’S OFFICE, and we work for you,
the citizens of Waldo County.

Respectfully Submitied

Lt

Shenff Scott Story

2003 Calls for Service (Not Inclusive)

Rape 3
Robbery \
Assaults 159
Burglary 96
Theft 225
Motor Vehicle Theft 26
Industrial Accidents 3
Arson 1
Forgery 6
Fraud 139
Stolen Property 4
Weapons Violations 2
Child Abuse 10
Violation Liquor Laws 8
Criminal Mischief 281
Sex Offenses 20
Juvenile Offenses 29
Missing Persons 42
Criminal Trespass 17

Suspicious Incidents 334



Prowler

Missing Property

General Offense

Civil Complaints
Terronzing / Threatening
Paperwork Service (Subpoena/Summons)
Drug Cases

Harassment

Animal Complaints
Incapacitated Person
Suicides

Suicide Attempts

Other Medical / Mental
Disturbances

ArTest

Reported Deaths

Motor Vehicle Accidents
Assist Motorist

Motor Vehicle Complaints
Robbery or Burglar Alarm
Motor Vehicle Stops

24
56
95
230
178
758
63
369
96

42
60
364
364
34
866
339
582
397
2114




WALDO COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
ANNUAL REPORT

TO: THE WALDO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND ALL CITIZENS OF WALDO COUNTY

IT IS WITH GREAT PLEASURE THAT I SUBMIT THIS REPORT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE
WALDO COUNTY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS CENTER/E 9-1-1 PSAP FOR THE YEAR 2003.

ALTHOUGH IT IS OFTEN A CLICHE, WCRCC IS TRULY A 24/7 OPERATION. IT IS STAFFED
BY 12 FULL-TIME AND 7 - 8 PART-TIME HIGHLY TRAINED 9-1-! DISPATCHERS. LATE
SUMMER OF 2003 WE SAID "SEE YA LATER” TO OUR FRIEND AND COLLEAGUE CHRIS
SHEDYAK WHO WAS CALLED UP WITH THE REST OF HIS GUARD UNIT FOR ACTIVE DUTY
INJRAQ. HURRY HOME AND BE SAFE !

YEAR 2003 SAW A SIGNJFICANT INCREASE OF ACTIVITY IN ALL AREAS OF
COMMUNICATIONS. EACH CATAGORY WAS UP QUITE SIGNIFICANTLY OVER 2002, LED BY
9-1-1 CALLS AND RADIO/TELEPHONE TRAFFIC.

AS THE YEAR PROGRESSED IT WAS EVIDENT THAT ACTIVITY HANDLED BY THE STAFF
WAS CONTINUING TO CLIMB FROM THE PREVIOUS YEARS.

EARLY IN THE FALL OF 2003 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HIRED A CONSULTANT TO
REVIEW OUR RADIO SYSTEM AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS ON IMPROVING THOSE
AREAS NEEDED. [T WAS EVIDENT THAT PAGING OUT OF FIRE/AMBULANCE
DEPARTMENTS NEEDED TO BE IMPROVED. THE CONSULTANT'S REPORT WAS PRESENTED
IN EARLY DECEMBER OUTLINING THE STEPS NEEDED TO TURN OUR COMMUNICATION
SYSTEM INTO ONE OF THE FINEST IN THE STATE. WE LOOK FORWARD TO THOSE UP
GRADES AND HOPE TO MAKE SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS IN 2004 TOWARD THAT END.

WE ALSO LEARNED FROM STATE 9-1-1 THAT IN MID 2004 WE WOULD RECEIVE THE LONG
AWAITED 9-1-1 MAPPING PROGRAMS AND PHASE I CELLULAR SERVICE. THIS ALL
HAPPENING IN LATE SUMMER/EARLY FALL OF 2004. THE MAPPING PROGRAM WILL GIVE
US THE ABILITY TO PIN POINT THE LOCATION OF THE 9-1-1 CALL AS IT COMES INTO THE
CENTER.

RADIO AND TELEPHONE CALLS WERE UP NEARLY 15,000 FOR THE YEAR. THE
DISPATCHERS OF WCRCC HANDLED NEARLY 300 MORE 9-1-1 CALLS FROM THE PREVIOUS
YEAR. OVERALL ALL ACTIVITY WAS UP 19,716.

FOLLOWING ARE THE STATISTICS FOR YEAR 2003 WHICH RELATES THE "DEMANDS"
MADE UPON OUR DISPATCHER S FOR SERVICE BOTH FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
THE AGENCIES WE SO PROUDLY SERVE. AS THESE REQUESTS ARE RECEIVED, MANY
TIMES SEVERAL AT THE SAME TIME, THEY ARE PASSED ONTO THE APPROPIATE AGENCY

CALLS FOR SERVICE (EXCLUDING FIRE AND AMBULANCE CALLS)........c.occovvineeennn. 24,225
CALLS FOR SERVICE FIRE AND AMBULANCE REQUESTS ..o, 9,395
RADIO CALLS TO US FROM AGENCIES ..ottt e see e e 19,223

ES-1-1 CALLS (INCLUDING 702 ABANDONED CALLS, NO ONE THERE)...........c.cc.cooceceee. 7,916



WALK - INS (PUBLIC INTO THE CENTER FOR COMPLAINTS OR PAPERWORK)............ 3,355
TOTAL ACTIVITY (UP NEARLY 20,000 EROM 2002) ... ooovrooroeeeeeoreeeeeeesos e see s eee e e 160,888

AS ALWAYS, WE ARE READY, ABLE AND PROUD TO CONTINUE TO SERVE THE CITIZENS
OF WALDO COUNTY AND THE MEN AND WOMEN OF THOSE AGENCIES WE SERVE.

WE ARE 9-1-1!

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

@xj«e“/%jt;

OWEN SMITH, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS



TO THE HONORABLE WALDO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

The Annual Report for the Waldo County Emergency Management Agency
1s hereby submitted.

The Waldo County staff has put in many hours to upgrade the
Emergency Operation Plans to meet the Federal Guidelines. This
plan has encompassed many hours of hard work and research by the
staff members of Waldo County Emergency Management staff. This is
an ongoing job and has to be done every year.

Waldo County has Started planning and training for WMD and
this has change the way plans work and now the Countieg and State
are yewriting the plans and trying to make a better working
document.

The Waldo County Emergency Management Agency, Emergency Plans

include the following:
Basic Plan
Direction & Control
Evacuation
Shelter
Alerting and Warning
Emergency Public Informatiocn
Hazardous Materials
Resource Management
Hazard Analysis
Damage Assessment
Disaster Assistance
Mitigation
Emergency Support Sexrvices

The Waldco County Staff would like to express their appreciation
to all of the following:
TOWN EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTORS:

James Richards Belfast
Clyde Wellman Sr. Belmont
Arthur A. Butler, Jr. Brooks
Clyde A. Wishart Burnham
Earl Anderson Sr. Frankfort
James Waterman Freedom
Fred Porter Islesboro
Don L. Nickerson Sr. Jackson
Matthew Shaw Knox
Christopher Birge Liberty
Jana T. Wood Lincolnville
Mario Tribuzio Monroe
Richard Peavey Mcntville
Jethro Pease Morrill
Mike Alley Northport
Eldea Glidden Palermo



Damion Moody Prospect

James Ames Searsmont

Sandra Blake Searsport

Thomas Moore Stockton Springs
Duncan Brown Swanville

Dale Rowley Thorndike
Lawrence Raymond Jr. Troy

Dennis Turner Sr. Unity

Rodney Young Waldo

Stanley Bowden Winterport

Waldo COUNTY STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS

Richard Farris Director

Dale Rowley Agst. Dep. Director

Ted Bartlett Asst. Dep. Directoer

Betty Farris Sheltexr Officer

Robin Staebler Ham / Communications Officer
Gloria E. Curtis Clerk Typist II

Robert Lestha Clerk/Planning

Waldo County radio club
Waldo County Search & Rescue

During the year of 1388 the County Commissioners received a
notice, from the State of Maine, that they were required to
establish a local planning committee to administer Sarah Title III,
the Emergency Planning and Right to Know Act of a Federal
Environmental Protection Agency Law entitled "Superfund Amendments
and Reauthorizaticon Act of 1987". There have been many changes to
this law, since 1988, and the Waldo County LEPC are staying in line
with these changes. In the fall of 1995 the LEPC acquired a grant
from the State and hired a part time clerk for the LEPC. In the
Year 1996 Waldo County LEPC completed the Chemical report for
Waldo County and with the States approval went to press as a
working plan. And now Waldo County is in the upkeep stage of this
plan and this will be ongoing every vear.

LEPC Committee

James Ames Herb Benecke Scott Story
Richard Farris Robert Lestha

Lawrence Greenleaf Debbie Heath

Clyde A. Wishart Frank Gehrling

Peter Goodwin Bruce Starrett

Robert Keating Gilbert Lorxd

Stanley Bowden Dale Rowley

Larxy Coock Gloria Curtis

These dedicated volunteers, from all over the county, have spent
long hours and much effort serving on this committee.



Waldo County EMA Offices are being used by many Community
Organizations for a meeting area and class room space, such as the
following:

The American Red Cross

Waldo County Amateur Radio Association

Waldo County Sheriff's Department

Waldo County Search & Rescue

Department of Motor Vehicles

Belfast Little League

Richard Farris
Director



To: The Waldo County Commissioners

The year 2003 was productive for the District Arorney’s Office. The office prosecutes
nearly all criminal and waffic cases investigated by law enforcement in Waldo County. There were
1190 criminal cases brought in the Belfast District Court, as well as 270 non-criminal violations
(such as possession of tobacco, alcohol or marijuana, and the newly de-criminalized fish and game
violations) and 104 juvenile cases. Several hundred traffic infractions were also prosecured through
that court. Superior Court, the only court where jury trials are available, had 319 new criminal cases
filed in 2003. All these numbers are substantial for a relatively small county. We were pleased nor
to see a continuation of the significant increases seen in recent years.

These cases were largely prosecuted by our two experienced attorneys: Deputy District
Anorney Leane Zainea of Searsport and Assistant D.A. Eric Walker of Belmont. The office also
conunues to benefir from a specialized juvenile prosecutor who handles cases in all four counies
within this prosecutorial distnct: Assistant D.A. Kendra Potz of Thomaston. Kendra’s position is
supported by a federal grant whose future is in jeopardy. Our challenge will be to ensure financial
support for this important work in the years to come.

The court work of the prosecutors is only made possible by effective support from the
county-paid staff. Kathleen Butler of Appleton recently completed her second full year as Victim-
Witness Advocate and conninues to do excellent work in this difficult position. Waldo Counry also
benefits from an advocate for child cases, Lynn Talbot of Rockland, who is shared with Knox
County. Both counues agreed to increase support for Lynn’s work this year 1o reflect her increased
responsibilities, especially in juvenile cases. The office is very forrunate that clerical aide Carla
Rogerson of Waldo has been able to take over as Secretary following the resignation of Dena
Perkins. We anticipate Carla’s former positon to be filled shortly so that the office is again fully
staffed.

Our emphasis as an office continues to be on domestic violence crimes, child abuse and the
many offenses linked to alcohol and drugs. We are graufied to have access ro two capable
investigators based in the cowrthouse: Domestic Violence Investgator Bryant White of the Waldo
County Shenff’s Department and Maine State Police Detective David Tripp, a child abuse specialist.
Our office works closely with Waldo County’s entire law enforcement community in the particularly
difficulr field of drug crafficking and possession. Use of heroin and other narcotics continues to be
a major concern, with consequences seen in court nearly every day.

The year ahead will be challenging. Limuted state resources for local courts and new laws
designed to shift supervision of offenders away from state-paid probation officials, will both affect
our office. We also face the daily task of working with the jail, community correcuons, and the
courts to limit the jail population while still protecting the public from dangerous offenders. The
District Artorney’s Office is a vital part of that effort. We appreciate the strong and continuing
support of the County Commussioners and the citizens of Waldo County in all of our work.

Respectfully submitted,

Geoffrey Rushlau,
District Artorney



WALDO COUNTY PROBATE
COURT REPORT - YEAR 2003

To: The Honorable Waldo County Commissioners and Citizens of Waldo County

Year 2003 was another busy year for the Waldo County Probate Court: 306 new probate
cases, 36 new adoptions cases, 7 termination of parental rights proceedings, 57 temporary
guardianship and/or conservatorship proceedings for both adults and minors, 314
passport applications processed and numerous other subsequent proceeding and filings in
existing cases, including everyday administrative duties and responsibilities.

In June, we had a new mobile filing system installed. It will replace all filing stacks and
cabinets. This mobile filing system will allow for much needed space in our Registry. It
1s projected that it will take approximately two years to convert all the files
(approximately 28,000) to the new system.

Matters held in the probate court are, as follows:

Wills filed without probate

Informal probate of wills and appointment of personal representatives

Formal appointment of personal representatives

Informal appointment of personal representatives

Foreign Estates

Demands for Notice

Appointment of guardian (adults)

Appointment of conservator (adults)

Appointment of guardian (minor)

Appointment of conservator (minor)

Change of name (adult)

Change of name (minor)

Emergency child protection orders

Adoptions

Consents for adoption

Termination of parental rights in conjunction with adoption proceedings

Establishment of parental rights in conjunction with adoption proceedings

Child support orders in conjunction with guardianship and
determination of parental rights and responsibilities proceedings

Trust proceedings

Complaints to determine parental rights and responsibilities

Any other matters governed by Statute and Rules of Court

Notary Public services

Passport Applications

The Court’s revenues for year 2003 increased over year 2002; the Court’s services to the
citizens of Waldo County are not self-sustaining, although we did stay within our budget
for year 2003. Revenues are controlled by statute and rule.



We are connected to the internet and it continues to be very valuable for same day
correspondence and response. Our new email address 1s registerofprobate@waldocounty
me.gov.

We continue to enjoy our new Jocation, which 1s 39A Spring Street, Belfast (downstairs
in the Maine District Court Building).

The Court is open Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and is a 24 hour
Court for emergency matters.

The Court is fortunate to have many lay court-appointed visitors 1 the county who are
willing to serve in meeting statutory requirements. We also appreciate the large number
of local attormeys, who are willing to take cases on a court-appointed basis at greatly
reduced fees to meet the Court’s needs.

We are grateful for Waldo County Shenff Scott Story, who has provided security for our
courtroom, and who further facilitates the taking of fingerprints in adoption matters.

Lastly, our staff includes Sharon W. Peavey, Deputy Register of Probate and Edna
Bowden, Clerk II (Microfilm). Judith N. Nealley, Clerk II (Probate) was added to our

staff on Apnl 21, 2003. .
Resp,egfully submitted, Z/

\ 7 Ip. . 5
ng'«LQ C Ol
i Ran offah A. Maidoux, Judge of Probate
v Joanne M. Crowley, Register of Rrobate




THE UNIVERSITY OF

TIMAINE

¢ Cooperative Extension

A Member of the Universtty of Maine System

2003 Annual Report of the Waldo County Cooperative Extension

University of Maine Cooperative Extension in Waldo County works collaboratively with over 50 agencies
and organizations, assessing the needs of and developing programs for Waldo County residents. Programs are

educational and designed to help people learn skills to improve the quality of their lives and of life in their
commumnity.

UMaine Cooperative Extension provides educational services to 10,000 to 12,000 Waldo County residents
annually. This report will provide citizens, community planners and other groups with information about
programs offered in 2003 in a variety of areas including Health and Nutrition, Parent Education, Consumer
Skills, Aging Issues, Small and Home-Based Business, Youth Development, Commercial and Home
Agriculture, Natural Resource Management, and Community Development.

Parent ¢ Child @we[opment Education

Four Parents Are Teachers Too home visiting professionals provide individualized family education and
support to first-time parents from pregnancy until the child is three years old. Every family receives:

+ individualized instruction to help meet their specific needs,

¢ encouragement in helping with language and motor skill development,

+ ideas to help manage behavior and other childhood issues,

» access to the latest and most reliable information to guide the development of their children, and

» connections to appropriate community services.

Over 700 Waldo County residents are reached with this program.

The Parents Are Teachers Too program is one of three modeis
recommended to all commumties by the Governor’s Children’s
Cabinet. The program was designed in Waldo County in 1988
and has now been expanded to six other sites.




Youth Development

4-H Youth Development

Clubs

4-H community clubs provide youth aged 5-19 with the opportunity to learn life skills. Volunteers
give many hours of service to provide youth with opportunities to learn and grow through projects.
Currently, there are 4-H clubs in Searsmont, Lincolnville, Liberty, Waldo, Searsport and Thorndike.
Family groups are organized in Winterport, Stockton Springs and Searsport. Responsible citizenship
is one of many life skills youth Jearn through 4-H. One 4-H group received a small grant which gave
them start-up funds to raise a beef amimal. After the animal was slaughtered, the meat was packaged,
frozen and donated to a local soup kitchen.

Camps

Tanglewood 4-H Camp and Learning Center in Lincolnville provides environmental and leadership
opportunities through summer and school programs. One-hundred fifty youth from Waldo County
participated in these programs last year.

School programs
In-school and after school programs helped more than 600 county youth explore healthy nutrition
choices, character education and being home alone more safely. Eat Welll programs were presented
in all three districts and outlying schools. Focus on Character helped youth learn how to make better
decisions. Youth in one Focus on Character program gained skills to become peer mediators.
Another school adopted the character education curriculum school wide for the entire year. Research
shows that if pre-teens learn how to and are encouraged to make positive decisions, they tend to
continue making better decisions and are incarcerated less.
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Programs for Seniors in ‘Waldo County

Safe and Secure Seniors

A six-part series was offered to 30 Waldo County residents on making
serors more aware of ways to make themselves feel safer and more
secure. Topics included:

Wills and Estate Planning

Food Needs from Fifty Forward
Preventing Falls by Improving Balance
Understanding Health Insurances
Avoiding Scams

Community Services Available to Seniors

¢ & & o ¢ o

> I =S
R I A D ‘Wa[z[o County TRIAD

UMaine Cooperative Extension staff worked with the Waldo County TRIAD. TRIAD is a collaboration of
law enforcement, community organizations, and citizens working together to improve the safety of Waldo
County seniors through education and service. TRIAD members raised funds to purchase Files of Life and
Emergency Beacon Lights.

The File of Life is a magnetic pocket that contains a place to list medical conditions, medications
v) used, and the name of the physician. It allows emergency medical personnel to have the information
they need to start treatment immediately.

The Emergency Beacon Light is a bulb that fits in any incandescent light fixture and works as usual
%) under normal circumstances. If the switch is flipped twice, the light flashes for 45 minutes. This allows
' police or ambulance personnel to find the right rural house at night.

) TRIAD produces a quarterly newsletter on scams and safety issues. This letter goes to over 1,400
%.‘ Waldo County residents.

Approximately 2,000 Files and 1,000 Beacons were distributed during 2003 to older and handicapped
i‘? Waldo County adults.

2003 Annual Report of the Waldo County Cooperative Extension



Community @eve[opment

Small Business Program

Over 200 current or potential Waldo County business
owners participated in the small business program.
Educational resources are provided to county residents
who operate or are considering starting a home-based

or small business. Cooperative Extension works with

business owners at any stage of business life, especially

at the “thinking about #t” stage. Major components of

the program are: Interagency Programming

¢ Small business clinics — individuals meet
confidentially with business educators to discuss A collaboration of representatives of all
business planning and operation organizations that offer services to

¢ Workshops — offered on fifteen different topics older adults has been meeting monthly
throughout the year for the past two years to:

¢ Doing Business — forty local entrepreneurs were + learn more about services available,
featured on a monthly radio show + learn where there are gaps in

+ Publications — 20 different business management services to seniors, and
fact sheets are available o work together to establish stronger

or new programs to Waldo County
Facilitation Skills citizens over 50.

Over 60 people have attended a 20-hour
training, Strengthening Your Facilitation
Skills, which is designed to build the working
capacity of groups. As team members,
citizens are expected to produce
results as they work with others.
Trained leaders are now helping local
groups develop action plans, resolve ﬁ
conflict, problem solve and are ]
modeling how to work more
effectively and efficiently. Fifteen
citizens are now participating in a
24-hour advanced training.
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Community @eve[opmnt

Farm Resources

e Waldo County Cooperative Extenston hosts a web site for
pasture and grazing information. The Northeast Grazing
Guide at www umaine edu/grazingguide 1s a resource that
was used by over 2,200 people in 2003 to access research
and mformation about grazing systems in the Northeast.

e Waldo County also hosts a web site as part of a three state
$2.1 million grant on re-integrating crop and livestock
operations. This site 1s www umaine edu/integratedfarming.

e Cooperative Extension in Waldo County has been active in
sponsoring and teaching classes at Small Farm Field Day in
Unity at the MOFGA fairgrounds. Last year this event
attracted over 300 part-time and full time farmers.

Lake Associations

Extension continues to work with the three active lake associations
(Swan, Lake St. George and Friends of Lake Winnecook-Unity
Pond). Extension has facilitated numerous successful DEP 319
grants for these associations along with the Waldo County Soil and
Water Conservation District. In 2002, Friends of Lake Winnecook
and the Lake St. George Association submitted proposals. Lake St.
George was successful and was funded in 2003 for several projects
including repair at the town beach to prevent continued erosion and
deterioration at the site. In 2003, a successful proposal was submitted
for Unity Pond and program efforts will begin in 2004

Water Quality

Water quality questions are often
directed to the Waldo County
office. Residents with concerns
about arsenic, radon and bacteria
often call to seek remedial action
and further testing.

2003 Annual Report of the Waldo County Cooperative Extension



ﬂlgriau[ture — Commercial and Home

Dairy Farming

Extension has:

utilize government programs.

their milk. Five Waldo County
producers now ship to organic
milk markets and receive a
premium for their milk.

s worked in 2002 with four
Waldo County dairy farms to
participate in a research project
funded by the University of
Maine Agricultural Center to
evaluate a new soil testing
procedure. This new test will
help to better predict crop
responses to manure and
commercial fertilizers.

2003 Annual Report of the Waldo County Cooperative Extension

Dairy farmers in Waldo County have been
facing financial hardships due to low milk
prices beginning in the middle of 2002.

e conducted numerous one-on-one
consultations to discuss options,
alternatives and strategies to deal
with low prices and how best to

e worked with the Maine Organic Farmers
and Gardeners Association to assist
producers Jooking to become organic dairy
producers and receive a higher price for

Farmland Preservation

Cooperative Extension has worked closely with the Unity Barn
raisers and several (nitiatives for Western Waldo County
farmers. One of these includes farmland preservation and the
Maine Farmland Trust which has successfully preserved a
500-acre farm in Thorndike from future development. Other
initiatives inctude a biodiesel project where a Knox farmer grew
soybeans that were later turned into diesel fuel. The group of
investigators is currently looking to contract for 100 acres of
soybeans for the 2004 growing season.

Home Horticulture

Hundreds of requests come to the
Waldo county office each year for
horticultural information. Plant and
Insect specimens are routinely
delivered to the office for
identification and control
recommendations. The Waldo
County office also hosts an annual
Garden Day program featuring local
garden experts. Last year more than
100 people attended the daylong
event that was held at Mt View
High school.

Farms for

Maine’s Future

A state program called “Farms for
Maine’s Future” was initiated by
Cooperative Extension and the
Maine Farms Project in Unity. It is
now funded by grant money as well
as funds from a 2003 $2 million
bond issue. This program helps
farms develop business plans and
allows producers to access grant
funds to implement these plans. In
return, producers must put limited

time conservation easements on their
property. In 2003, 37 farms were
accepted in the program (seven tn Waldo
County).




Better Nutrition for Waldo County

Eat Well Program

Three home visitors worked with over 1,000 limited income children and adults. They work with
adults on an individual or group basis. The curriculum is personalized to the needs of each
household and may include:

¢ cutting food costs, ¢ how to use diet to help prevent chronic
¢ how to get the most nutrition for food disease,
stamps and food dollars, ¢ weight management,
¢ healthful food choices for children, ¢ exercise needs, and
young or older adults, ¢ gardening.
¢ buying and preparing foods for one or
two

>

The Eat Well staff worked in 30 classrooms of 4® and 5" graders in Waldo County schools. Each
class had three lessons. The lessons for 4™ graders were about what the body needs for food. The
classes for 5™ graders were about how the body uses foods. They reached over 600 school

children.

Adults mn the program show great progress in their ability to shop on less money and to provide
better nutntion for themselves and their families. The school groups are very enthusiastic about the
lessons provided and teachers have now invited the staff back for three years in succession to add
the basics of nutrition to the curriculum.

The Eat Well staff also used a 10-part learn-by-mail nutrition education series with people who are
not available to participate in the usual individual or group sessions. Over 100 people selected this
option.

Diabetes Management Education =

Taking diabetes information from the medical setting
to the kitchen is difficult for many people. A series
of 3 half-day sessions was offered twice in 2003. A
total of 41 people learned about planning meals and
preparing foods at home and eating out for the
person with diabetes. Many other persons receive
individual consultation on managing with diabetes.

2003 Annual Report of the Waldo County Cooperative Extension



This annual report shows how the Waldo County offlice
of the University of Maine Cooperative Extension
serves the citizens of our county with hands-on
educational programs and information. Our programs
are designed with citizen input and tailored to meet
specific local needs. Our county office s also part of a
statewide organization and the national Extension
system. These partnerships provide our county office a
wide array of resources, programs and learning
opportunities to bring to the people of our communities.

Our mission: to help Maine people improve their
lives through an educational process that uses
research-based knowledge focused on issues and

needs.

Annually our Extension Office serves over 10,000
people, most of them citizens of our county and a few
live elsewhere in Mame. They participate in short term
workshops and year-round programs, receive
publications and newsletters and consult with Extension
staff or volunteers.

=1

Extension Educators:

Jane Haskell, Business, Youth & Community Development
Rick Kersbergen, Agriculture & Natural Resources

Pat Pierson, Nutrition & Family Living

Nutrition Professional Eat Well Program:
Kate Yerxa

Nutrition Aides:
Beth Chamberlain
Gerry Dunphy
Pat Fraser

4-H Program Aide:
Joyce Weaver

Parents Are Teachers, Too Professionals
Pam LaHaye, Child Development Coordinator
Martha Powers
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County Educator Gains Recognition

The 2003 Northeast Extension Directors’ Award of
Excellence was granted to a team headed by Extension Educator
Rick Kersbergen. The "Comprehensive Nutrient Management
Educatton Program” addresses the mcreasing need for Maine
livestock farmers to tmplement nutrient management practices
that are environmentally safe.

In 1999, The Maine Department of Agriculture contracted
with the University of Maine Cooperative Extension to develop a
training and cert:fication program to meet the needs of nutrient
management legislation. All nutrient management plans must be
certified by individuals with demonstrated competencies in
general nutrient management, basic soil science, soil fertility,
autrient behaviors, soil and manure testing, field management
and calibration and record keeping. Under the leadership of Rick
Kersbergen, Cooperative Extension developed the “Traning and
Certification Manual" that uses resources and research from
other New England states, Pennsylvania, New York and the
Maine Analytical Lab at the University of Maine. The Maine
Department of Agnculture now utilizes Cooperative Extension’s
testing and certification program for potential nutrient
management planners.

Approximately 325 individuals have participated in thirteen
training sessions. Cooperative Extensicn conducted an additional
set of farmer meetings for producers who wanted to become
certified and write their own plans. Another series of statewide
workshops was held so producers could bring all the necessary
data and sit down with Extension and NRCS staff to
collaboratively write nutrient management plans.

Impacts Achieved:

e Since the program started, 411 certified nutrient
management plans have been written for dairy and other
livestock producers representing the manure produced
from 61,736 animal units.

e Over 92,005 acres of cropiand are managed using
nutrient plans developed under Maine guidelines.

e $2.5 mullion dollars was appropriated by the 119th
Maine Legislature to support the construction of manure
facilities for Maine farmers.

e  The state "Nutrient Management Team"” was awarded
the Governor’s Teamwork Award in the spring of 2000.

e  $3.0 million dollars was approved by Maine voters
through bond issues (2001, 2002) for the construction of

Diane Russell

Ellie Weider manure facilities for Maine farmers.
Support Staff: For more informaltion, contact us at

Connie Clements 997 Waterville Road, Waldo, ME 04915

Pat Richards Tel: 1-800-287-1426 (in Maine) or (207) 342-5971

Carolyn Wingate Fax: (207) 3424229

email: ceswal@umext.maine.edu

website: www.umext. maine.edu




Waldo County Extension Association Budget Report for 2003

County Funds — 2003

Account Allocation Expenditures
For 2003 for 2003
3000 Secretarial Salaries $30,540 30,880.20
4300 Utilities
Electricity 1,800 1,798.91
Telephone 3,300 3,089.12
4600 Repairs/Maintenance
Trash Removal 100 100.00
Snow Removal 600 650.00
Office Cleaning 1,800 1,780.00
Equipment Repair 800 1,433.86
Building Repair 500 73.46
4900 Dues/Training for 225 294.06
Volunteers
5200 Fuel 1,000 868.50
5300 Supplies 5,700 5,804.36
5600 Postage 125 231.14
SUB-TOTAL $46,490 $47,003.61
Capital Outlay 3,900.00 3,575.00

(Hand railing - 1,200
Septic tank cleaning - 200
Exterior painting — 2,500)

(Handrailing - 1,200
Septic tank cleaming — 175
Exterior painting — 2,200)

TOTAL

$50,390

$50,578.61 *

*The allocation was overspent by $189.11. This amount will be covered by income earned from the
Extension Perspectives newsletter.




Waldo Community Action Partners

we Coue gLiout people,

Annual Report 2003

WCAP a private non-profir, was incorporated in
1965 as a Community Action Agency, with the mission to
“Creute opportunities for low income people
to improve their quality of life.”

INSIDE

Wtio Works atWCAP .. .. .... .. .. ..

Who 1s Responsible . .

The face of Poverty in Waldo County . .

How the FACES of Walao County Can Get a Lift

Head Start .. .. . Lo e
Dental Project . .... .. . ... ... ...
Housing/Energy Services . e
Fosler Grammies e

Summary of Services . . ... .. P L .
Statement of Revenues, Support and Expenditures . ..
Transportation . .

This Annual Report is
Dedicated to the Board of
Directors, Volunteers and

Policy Council for their
Commitment of Service to

the Community
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Waldo Community Actien Partners
9 Field Street, PO Bax 130+ Beilast, ME 04915
(207) 338-6808 - www.weesa.org



WHO WORKS AT WCAP

ADMHNINTRATTON

Jeyee C, Seou, Murill
Joseph Robuson, Mt Desen
Joanne Parsons, Beltast
Kate Cox, Searsport
Barbara Daygetr. Belfast
Gale Hogan, Morrl|

Patricia Hogan, Morril
Volunleer

Claire Carpenter. Bettast

NENTAL
Sandra Evans, Bellase

AN

Holly Ingraham, Kinox

Shirley Hurvey, Sorthport -
Buarbara | 1. Liberty i

Viola N
ucray . P

Searsport Audrey Cook

HOUSING

Vicki Yurk, Stockion Springs

taery Haevath, Libery

HEAD STARI

Jane Aduns, Jackson
Naney Allen, Beltast
Herdi Beaulier, Winterpon
Jenimrer Boyi
Jean Brown, Belfast

Linda Clements, Wintempar
Justin Canner, Searspurt
Athena Crossman. Scarspan
Christina D . Behiast
Melinda Groton. Liberty
Cuasi-Anne Higgins, Brooks
Sundra Holk, Brewer
Cynthia Hubbard, Troy
Shannon Hustuy, Jackson

Ol Seasport

Dorothy [versan, Excter
Barbara Later, Prospect
Cynthia Leadbener, Waldo
Glenice (Sue) Lear, Mornli
Chnstine Lutletield, Belfust
Tan: Miles, Waldo
Donna Nielsen, Searsport
Denise Nott, Did Town

4 Jacqueline Overlock, Freedom

<3 Debra Palmer, SMontvilte
J Pease, Belmoent
Katherine Raymund. Beltast
Tammy Richards, Searstont
Nadine Richards. Northport
Suzgnne Rinun, Searsmont
Linda Raolerson,
Thoermndike
Nettie Sunmons,
Belfast
Patricia Skag,
Frank foet
Kristina Spaulding, Knox
Jill Starren, Beltast
Darlene Sylvester, Belfast
Kate Tayior, Scarsport
KNathryn White, Winterpart

Joyce Scott

OUTHREANCH

Kitty Duughty, Knox

Linda Dud Brocks

Kimberly Luazussie, Stoekton Spruaigs
Patricia Payeur, Waldo

[RANSPORTATION

Edward Murphy, Belfast

Lucille Allen, Narthport

Roselyn Bean. Beltast

Audrey Cook, Brooks

Kenneth Curtis, el fast

Herman Dyer, Belfast

Edward Gerrish, Stockton Springs

WHO IS RESPONSIBLE

A volunteer Buard of Direciors consistng of 11 members and 13 alternates. Seven members ane fepre-

sentatives of the econgiiucally underprvileged and are elected by sume. Seven members are public

oflicnls or thew appeinted representutives 1o nep

ssent six towns within the county. Scven members are

representitives of the private sector in the categories of Health, Welfare, Education, Religion, Business

i Professional Services, Board members appoint their own alternates except io the case of the repre-
sentatives of the economically underpeivileged who are elected by the celicnt populaton, They are

ssstgnied according to the election resulis. Each Board Member serves a thres

No term [ims are irposed

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Marguret Bompey, Belfast
Joe Brooks, Wintemst
Faith Campbell, Sandy Point
lon Chestan, Reltist

Ehmner Clark, Jr, Belfast
Angels Craw ford, Searsmont
Katy Emnuni. Camden

Kristy Frehock, Monroe
Joamne Levesgue, Likerty
John Marsiuli, Beltus
Catherme Miklovich, Swanville
Charles Miklovich, Swanville
Mertice Mowre, Uity

Eric Nadeau, Searsport
Fleetwood Pride, Jr.. Belfust
Sonja Sanders, Scarsport
Helen Sniger. Swanville
Eihot {Ball) Ward, Scarspon
Carrall Warren, Sr., Waldg
Juseph Watsyn, \Wmterport
Patoicia Woedbieny, Mol

BOARD ANLTERN A LS
Constance Annstrony, Sandy Point
Dan Bennett, West Rockpan
Dorothy Harrison, Libeny

Hope Hircheouk, Lty

Jumes Hitcheock, Lnity

Dina & -, Belfas

Norma Littlefield. Beltas

Helen Nichols, Noithpar
Raymand Porter, Morrill

Larry Quinn, B
Andrea Read, Searsmaont

car conseculive enm.,

Brent Wateriman, Belmuni
Winston York, Belfast

HEAD START POLICY COLNC L
Mari-Jo Alhents, Searsport

Stacie Alley, Lincolnville

Jim Bar, Searsport

Dongld Clark, Palermo

Terri Clark, Palermo

Ruth Curtis, Swanville

Mirnone Bod ackson

Mudeling Foster, Unny

Julie Gray. Beltast

Neei Jucksan, Stoekton Springs
Ainber Larrabee, Frankfort

Dale Larrabee, Frankfort

Nikki Leavirt, Frankfort

John Marshall, Belfast

Subine MeAlpine, Burnham

Mat Merando, Belfast

Stepheny Merudo, Beltast

Mally Peebles, Belf:
Dallas Prescott, Belfast
Caral Pringle, Thomdike
Erin Ribert, Frankton
Muarie Raberts, Waldo
Rose Roy, Unity

Chns Sanders, Searsport
Sanja Sanders, Scarsport
Kristy Staples, Swansille
Leanne Temple, Belmont
Beent Wateman, Belinont
Kristen Waterman, Belmont
Mijcheile Wilbur, Searsport

Raobert Hamilton, Jr., Brooks
Juseph Klein, Troy

Keisty Kimball, Beltast

William LaValley. Belmont
Tamie Parsons, Beitas

James Phullips, Belfast

Virgmia (Ginger) Seckims. Belfiast
Mulcolm Small, Northport

VMOLENTEER DRIV ERN

Andy Cote. Augusta

CGeryldine Brooks, RBurnham

lackie Emnery, Liberty

Patty Gerry, Etma

Heidi Graham, Bellast

Elsie Ireland, Troy

John Klein, Troy

Rathie Late, Unity

Joan Martin, Brooks
Wayoe Merchan, Albion
Paula Roberts, Brooks
Malcolm Smiadl, Northport
Vemice Sinith, Brouks
Murzanst Sweet. Liberty
Jahin Tower, Wyldo
Carroll Warren, Sr., Waldo
Willtao Wilcos, Wantemont

NONEP
Gloris Burge, Scarspont
Zoe Calder, Belfust

Marilyvn Chase, Stockton Sptings
Marvann Hostetler, Rockland
Cariplyn Jackson, Belmont
Melen Katerheinrreh, Rockland
Jean Lawler. Belfast

Jovee Littletield, Belmaont

Julia Raven, Freedom

Faylene Revnolds, Linity

Bill Shielda, Rockiand

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

| WCAP is a non-profit community organ-
| ization yncorporated la educale. cmpow -
| er and advacate for the people of Waldo
Counly by mapagiag e(ficient programs
thar foster hope, safety, and dignity to
improve the quality of life.

Underlying Principles
WUAR s cumaitted to.
+ Providing and enconraging quabiy child
development,
Providin
and affordable housing.

¢ and supponing safe, comfurtable

l = Providing hasic daily nutrition education,

asie needs including food. heat

| = Providing + |
clectriciry, phones, and other essential serv-
ices,

- Providing access to these and other medical
and social services through transportation.

+ Encouraging healthy lifestyles and appropri- |
ate use of health resources |

» Providing all services in a respectiul, effi-

( cient and cost effective manner to ensure

| client sarisfaction,

Developing partnerships that maximize
| resources and services that create a Healthy |
Community.

Providing leadership opportunities that
empower personal voiees n the conuunity.
| = Recognizing the diversity of cach individual
and sthier abilities and hie expeniences.

Providing employees with a safe, respectiul |

waorkplace that supports personal and pro-
fessional growth with equitable wages and

benefits.




THE FACE OF POVERTY IN WALDO COUNTY

Wha are the Maiie people Bving belos (he poscris level !
1R (10.800)) are marcied couples,

« 229 (L2000 ure single mothers wil children

450

. 27 1 * ¢ . ' ~ > e P Z i 3
‘A (27,0000 Tive alone — with 'z ot those bemg elderly and the sther % gre youny adults or prople fenween the ages of 50-63.

Many ol these people (ages $0-63) are women with ne husbands and'or have children rown and movad away

60" (36,000) of those people i poveny - work.
O e (21,600 of thuse warking have two jabs o more

Contributing Vactoes Fur Poverny in Waddo County
= Unemployment - 4.3% (1.548).

» Housing

S10.000 or less, 74.3% i3 paid for hausing,

+3.3% of thoxe fanwlies with an annual income under S20,000 pay more than 35%% tor hous

* Education — 77% (27,724} of our citizens have no college degree, and have a low per capita sncome.
* Many Maine residents who 2o on te higher education migrare out of the state for better jobs.

Muaiae Poverty Facre:

Transportation - [5%, (3400) ol our centers a0d 4. 1% (14761 of our bomeowners are lacking access 16 transportation

> A tamily of four thar makes below $18.400/vear is considered ta be liv ing 10 poverty,
< 14275 (5. 112) ar houselialds iy Waldo Caunty are below the povernty level,
= The stute average of houscholds below the poverty level 1s 11.5% (142,703).

- A0 (496.337) oF citizens in Maine will experience at least one year below poverty in their tfetime.

- Oﬁ ANQLY

6% (57600 of cruzens in Waldo County receive some kind of benetit versus the state averape of 10.7%, (124.080)

« Maine 15 one ol 23 states most tikely 10 be residence for people 30 and older.

< One oulhion people in the US. wm 60 every month.

HOW THE FACES OF WALDO COUNTY CAN GET A LIFT

The Food Assistanee Conpeet

Elicible Seriors (FACES)
Program is an outreach service for county semors to help them
enroll in food assistunce programs and provide advocacy and
support with everyday Tife issues they might have. In 2003, the
pragram enrolled 355 new food stamp households: 92 recipi-
ents in the MameCare Program; 210 recipients with Medicare
Insurance waivers: 134 with prescription relief; {0 with hearing
amds: 383 resid

nis
were given TRIAD
files of life: 104 recip-
fents benelited from
the FarmShare
Program and 14 indi-
viduals were agsisted
with emergeney food
ot healily care issues.
Advocacy was also
given to 245 people to
assist with bepetits
such as transportation,
dental, Meals on
Wheels, housing,
HEAP, HealthWatch,
Senior Employvment,
Lxiension service.
Social Security, and
SSIL

Over the past year,
WCAP FAC
Program has assisted 333 households and more than 600 Waldo
e of DD

County residents over Uie a

=

NMost people kw1t ean be difficult to umder~tand what pro-

1tth an annuil meonts of

erams are available “there™ 1o assist an individual in theie tune
ot need. And when connection s made, 1t ¢an be very confus-
g dealing with a multitude of agency contacrs. In fact, it can
be overwhelming especially if someone ix sick and just Uunk-

iy in itsett s an effort. 1t's also Jifficult for those couples that
lose a spouse. The mounds of papenvork. interviews, und con-
nections to many agencies before they start living on their own
cun bring stress and impact their peace of mind. This is where

the FAC
ponent of the FACES Program can cunnect older Amenicans

Program can step in and help. The outreach com-

with the resaurces they need and advocate to make it happen,
plain and simple, Assistance can
be given tw help fill out paper-

work for medical relief, pension =

papers, preseription relief, or just
o tell someone it's okay and they
have someone in their corner.
Other times the situation s mare
sertous such as needing food,
heat, being out of medicine, or

finding solutions so that sameone

doesn't have to juggle between

buying tood and medicines any-

=
oy

more, ( e

= -
I vou are an older American, disabled in need of assistance.
trained FACES stafY can come right to the home, sit down and
chat with yau. They assess your needs. explaim the programs
and do all the legwork on the
decisions you make. You don't have to do a thing bug let them

know what you decide you want to do.

I vou would like 10 set up a visit, please call Holly, Prorram
Dircetor a1 (207) 338-367 7 ar 1-800-439-7848



HEAD START

Community Partnerships provide diverse aprions for Heuad Start families

Waldo County Head Start is 8 comprehensive ehild and tunily
development pragram that serves children from three to five years
ot age and their tamihes. Presently Waldo County Head Start serves
140 Children in centers in Bellast, Unnty, Searspart and Winterpart.

T addition to the regular half-

n. Head
Start atfers a Collaborative
Program for cmldren whose
family needs full-day and or
tull-vear child care. This option
is made possible theough purt-
nershipg wath Jocal Family Child
Care Homes (Home Starty and
accredited Child Care Centers.
Currently 42 addiional children
are being served by Head Start
with the following community
partners:

day school vear prog

+ Beltast Area Children’s Center, Waldo

« Starrett Children's Center, Belfust

+ Waldo County Preschool & Family Services - sites located 1n
Unily and Beltast

» First Steps (Honte Starty,
Belilst

+ Hume Away From Home
(Home Star). S vont

+ One Hundred Acre Wood
FHome Starts, Beltisy

= Mimy's Plav House (Home
Star). Moniville

Children and tamilies enrolled in
the Collaborative Program recene
the swme services as other Head
Start children.

WALDO COUNTY DENTAL PROJECT (WCDP)

The WEDP s a voudhee-based

progrum that serves the low- gy
R

imcome, uninsured resident of =

Waldg County. The WCDP
serves over 200 chents each
sear, with over 3 visis 1o P
the seven arca dentists, and . '”
three traveling specialisty :
working with the project,
Tlie WCDP oflers cleanings,
exams, c-rays, restorative Nilings. extrac-

widerinsured. und umimsured
residents of Walde County 1o
gt altordable dental care.

The WCDTP works collabora-
tvely with many state and local
organizations. Warking through
the Scheol Oral Health Prozram
(SOHP), the WCDP has four
schools participating in the
Schoal Dental Sealant Program

-

—

-t

Waldo County Heud Start also calluborates with Waldo County
Preschool & Family Service and S.A.D. # 36 10 provide a tour-
vear-old day prozram located at the Searspont Head Start Center.

Waldo County Head Siart compleces federal veview
Federal Review Team Leader, Rick Borseti, and his review eam
spent the week of November |7, 2003 conducting Walde County
Head Start’s Triennial Review, On-site progrant reviews aliow the
Administratton for Childeen and Famities, as the responsible fund-
ing agency for Heud Star, 1o assure that Head Sturt programs deliv-
er the type and scope of services required by the Head Start
Progran Performance Standards. During the review teams’ exit
mterview with stafl, reviewers stated that Waldo County Head Stan
functions at a high level and 15 a high quality program,

Walde County Head Stant
continues s commitment
ta providing high-quality
child development ser-
vices 1o the low-ncome
tumilies and children of
Waldo County, Head Start
stult also looks torward to
strengtheming and expand-
g callaborative ties with
ather child development
and educational programs
throughout the county.

Beltust City Festival, and hus started offenng
dental clmics tor Head Start children and
WIC tamilies,

The WCDP helieves that access 10 oral health
cin be achieved through edycation, preven-
ton and mnovaiive approaches of providing
services. Partnering with local dental
providers and programs like the SOHP,

and being resourcelul in bringing hygiene

services W non-traditional areas will help

. seualants and education on a

tons, denture
sliding Tee scale 10 Waldo County income-

chigible residents.

Mauwine has destenated Waldo County as
“Dentally Underserved”. The national ratg
of patients 1o denlists is one tor every [.743
patients, In Maine the avernge 1< one dentist
for every 2,127 patients, while in Waldo
County the raty is ane denast for every
3146 patients, almast three times the naton-
al rate and more than double the State aver-

ase. The WEDP was fonued in response to

A commity neeld s 1994 as 4 way tor the

Tlis program oflers free denial sealants to th
proz

second gradees, The WCDP g also oversee-
ing the Fluonde SWISH program in all 16
elementary <chools i Waldo County, In the
past year, WCDP has given dental presenta-
lions 1o over 1,383 elementary students,
teaching them how to brush and foss
properly. and how to make healthy snack
choces. Dental preveation education along
with fluonde rinses will have an impact on
the thture of Waldo Couitly 's voungest
residents,

The WCDP has also presented at many com-
munity events, such as Health Fairs and the

> WCDP meet the challenges of oral health
care in our County

Call the \Waldo County Denlal Pragrany al
T38-6509 tar muie itormation.,

The Walda Couaty Deatal Projeec’s
(AVCDP) mission is:
To eniance the health, self-esteem and
coplovability of Weddo County fonw-
e uine ’L‘.\Iﬁr('”/ /}/!'-‘]"I_‘“I"T QCCENY Iy
olfordable dental care -.Jnd/m_'l'r_fnmllw_'
dental educarion.




HOUSING/ENERGY SERVICES

This affice is the entrance center for many of our progeams as well as ar

Porow ofliccs and commun iy -byscd or

ree center that coanects low-ingame clicnts with dozens of

iizations. \We are statted with tour full-time mepbers who serve as resoufce

~

ferral agents in linking |

individuals amd Fnailies with services, and senve as chient advecotes whenever necessary, We offer iome visits to these who would otherwise

~ and Soup Kitchen

I have no ageess to services, mcluding Housmg Weathenzaunon, LIMEAR Telephone Lifeline, Electric Lifelne, Energy Crisis Assistance,
| Housing Loan Progrims, and the local Food Pany

Law Inconme Home Eoeroy Csaistanee Progeiem
TLTHE AP ~Foel Assistangee™
o Serves 20 Towns iy Walda County
Pravades honte vistls for the homebound
= Provides "assistunce” foe heating purposes
Program year - Ogtober |- April 3ith
By appoimtment anly

Benetits based on
Number of peeple i household
- Gross mcome from all dourges
Iypc ab tael toad, woud, elecneal, ety
- Type of hame thouse, mabile, rental
Number af rooms (exelide halls &
hathevomis)

o Benefin s sent dirgetly o tuel vendorin
client’s nunwe

b g ol T Lyt

This home, owned by a tamily of seven was built in the
garly 1800's and will be renabilitated with funding Trom
several grants programs. The extensivg work that wil
he done 1o this home will indude a two stery addi
reafing. siding, msulalion, sheelrock. replacement of

GO replacement ol windows, plumbing, electrical
nealing syslem well. sepli stem and lead paint
removal

Meatherization Program

Weathenization provides ene snyenvatiQn
measures (insulaton., caulking. air sealing, ete.)
to low-income qualfiied applicants at ne cost.
Privriy is given to households with elderly (60-).
houscholds with g child 24 imenths and younger,
aud handreapped mdividuats

Contral Heating tepose cment Posaram

(O HEPY

CHIP provides repair and/or replacement o fuw .

income qualiried applicants whose primary e
&

suurce poses o theedl o the health and s
the houschold members

Those of you who visit the Belfaat Center are sure

w have noticed four new faces in the ¢lassrooms
this vear. We have became a host site for the
Foster Grandpacents, W had four Foster
Grandmothers start in September, Sally

Chamberlain ang Lawra Richardson in ¢l

AL and Junice Bunker snd Joyee Emerson i oJass-

roant B, The Grumimes have been a big help so
far, spending all day every day with our Beltast
childran, Now we ar¢ tocunate cnough tw have
anpther Gramone joiming the team, Bea Stewar!
Foster Grandmuothor from Doser-Foxerogt, hus
recentty moved to the arca. She and baura will

now be spending their time in Searsport, with the

otlier three Granwmics remarning i Belfast, [ you

ENERGY PROGRAMN

IEreroy Crisis hoervention Progeam (LCHM

* Ewergency purposes only ~ out of el ao
disconnection notice

= Up o S200.00 benetil

< Need centified HEAP application

+ Telephone Litelme Program (TLP)

+ Provides a $10.30 monthly credit on the
telephone bill to HEAP eligible clients -
ST26AMY savines for 12 menths

Electric Cileline ProarapOME (ELEY
s Provides o meathly credit on electne baill
or eligible clients, bused on unnual gross
income amd estimated annuul electric
usage
» Not everyone who gualifies for HEAP will
receive an ELP credit
+  Subsidized housing dees not quality for
this program
N e forann Starn
IAGNT)
» Replace 53 gallon drums
« Replace ofd. leaky ol tanks
« Far homepwners enly

e Tank Propram

HOUSING PROGRAMS

Hogsing Eneroy Lase Loan Option (HELLOY
Loans range from SSH o STS00.00 ar 8%
interest for homeawners whose income does not
exceed $0% of median income. Luans are avail-
able for rehabilitation; insurance deductible for
housing repairs: and health and safety or sanitury
Feasons: or to protect the basic tvability of the

residence

Lasistange Credil

Central Mawe Power new residence electric
servive credit up to § 2800L00 fur homeowners
whose meente does not excecd 113% of the arca
smiedisn meome based on famify sizes and whose
new residence would meet the Mame State
Huusing Autherity’s First Time Home Buyer
Progrant. This must be your primary residence,

Hupe Repair Program

Grant progrum designed to rehabilitate homeown-
er'y dwelling, Grants provided 1o househohds with
mgome at or below 8%, Supplemental grants of
up 1o STON0ULO0 are availuble to finance the cost
of Lead Mytigauan,

Huousing Presersativn Grant Progrant (HPG)
This is 4 grant fur Jow-incame gualified home-
owners o rehubihitate their home.

Foster Grammies

The Grammies, from l&ft to right, top to
pottom, Coordinator, Cindy Whilney, Bea,
Janice, Laura, Sally. and Joyce

[emporary Tmerceacs Food Assistunere
Procewm  PEFAPY Donated Commuodities
Food received tron Departmient of Agncalire
and distributed w10 Food Panrries

FEMA T ond
Receive grant moeney that Js Jdistributed 10 Gowd
Shepard for the Food Pantrics

Maine Bi
MO
= Provides free mammograms and sc
for eligible wonen uped 40-64
« Service provided to wisimen with oo or very
litle health insuronee
= We provide information, brochures and Jdo
a mailing o gur clients

st Cervaeat Health Program

g

To complete this project WCAP partnered with Maing
State Housing Authomty's Home Repair and Lesd Grant

Programs,; the Maine Department of Economic and
Community Develepment's Community Development
Block Grant; and with assisiance from the WCAP Centrat

Heating Improvement (CHIPY and Weatherization
Programs.
I ndecoround Noraee Yaak Program

Provides grants for low-ncome homeowners for
removal of underground storage tanks.

Public Liilities Commivion (PLCY
Refrizerator Program

This program is coordinated watl the
Weatherization program 1o replace metficient
relrieerator for lpw-ieome hgmeowners

see them around, be sure o say hello snd
thank themn for all their help. Foster
Grandparents is 4 serviee organization that
give children the much needed uttention that
can change lives. They help children [earn to
read, cure for children with disabilities and
ufter counseling to those who need 1t To be
cligible for the Foster Grandparent program,
vou must be aver 60 vears old, able o volun-
e

20 hours per week, hiave o limited
incomi, and love children, If you have any
questtans sbowt the Fosier Grandparents wt
Head Start, or 1f yuu know anyone interested
in joiing the Foster Grandparents progrom,
please call Chiys Royall ar 33K-43590 ext, 209,



SUMMARY OF SERVICES

Octaber |, 2002 through September 30, 2003

PROGRAM SERVICES PROVIDED NUMEER SERVED

TRANSPORTATION | a3
SCSEP

Vih

e Miles

OOLLAR VALUE OF SERVICE

Dhrect Service

Inkmd

SRAR M) 0]

Department of Haman Seevices: Unorio-door rangportaton avalable fur grocery shopping.
personal business and medical apprintments for liw-income families Tl S1.063, 064 00
Medivaid Cliensse Milenge resmbarsements tor families, frends and clients 1o trnsport 1
medical appaintments,
Burean sf Mewtal Retacdaiion Clicns: Deviate fixed rowle denund-resposse rapspartation
wurk sites and social centers.
Coeneral Public Fraaspetasion: Fieed route scheduled bos servive o Banger, Augusia, Waterville,
Rk bl and towns withn Walde County. Indiadual contses servives wiy
Charters available
HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE 2126 Households Operating St 1 U6
Durewt pavients 1o Juel vendors o cover part of the home en cosls of ineame ¢ligible fambhes L6200 Individusls Direct Service SUR8 2aA 000

Toml  S084,925 00
ENERGY CRISIS INTERVENTION 175 Jlouschulds Direel Servie i)
Emergency pavments made b Toel vendors or power companies on or mceme eligihle families that see ar esk 436 Individuals
at being without hwar i their hemeg,
OENTAL PROGRAMS 167 Indivaduals Operating
Collaborarve programs working o improve the orad health of Walds Cousty cinzens thrgh acoess to X33 Visus Direct Service
educational, preventaive and weatmient services. Pregrams ace provided o schools, fe agencies, and to individuals Inkind

Toval SHI RS 0
HEAQ START & CHILD NUTRITION 188 Hewseholds Qperting  $1.4U3,824 00
S eornpeehensive fanuly progrom designed w give lnswincome children and their amilies an opportumny 1y Jo4 Imdividuaks Inkind S0l 431
e sducation, heshh, nuie - and secial serviges, These are tin Center-Rased optons and several foal  S1.633.067 00
Clhild Cave Collabarainms
WEATHERIZATION 3 Houschalds Operating
Practical ene e rvalion meysares amnd infematien 136 Individuals Direct Service

Tual
HEALTH AND SAFETY NEFERRED LOANS L} Houscholds Diceet Service S 14000
Dyetermesl fuans 1o homoowners whe are unable w obtan o hank loan, and have health/safety b 19 Induiduals
s el i
DONATEC COMMODITIES (FEMA/TEFAP) Huuseholds STREO IO
Workmg with local foud cupbeards and soup kitchens in Walda County i abtaining rood and funds "7 Individuals ST 5610
1o help feed hungry fanubes “menthly.

not annuallx
ABOVE GROUND STORAGE TANKS |AST) 20 Hosseh Operuting
Replacement of | wils tanks or 33 gallon daims Tor how-imcome S Tndividusls Dhirect Serve
hinmeewners: Total
CENTRAL HEATING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 10 Houscholds Dincet Serive YRRRIHETH
Conpeucts with lecal, heensed contraceors g repar and replice Ty primary heating systems tor income 200 Inglivicluals
bl Twnilies

CREDIT ASS|5TA E 41 Houschalls Qprerating
N denioe Clenkie seruice oredin o b S e i e amilies Uit neeet, Saane State los fadviduals Direct Servics .
Huowsing Sutlusiy's Frst w Hewne Huyers Pogrmn qualdicanon Tiatal S |S.EHH) )
ELECTRIC LIFELINE PROGRAM 763 Households Benefit Amount S1360.402 1)
Proswtdes mthly credit om electrie bill ta meomse ehgihle familes
TELEPHONE LIFELINE PROGRAM L3816 Househqlds Benelin Amauat LRAL T IE]

Monthly credit o1 S1030 oo basic phime seraee amd o $10 00 installanion Fee i new service tor low-
tncenme farm s

COMMUNITY SERVICE BLOCK GRANT (SUPPORTS FOOD, HOUSING, AND
BUSINESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS)
Sapperts new programs, esisting oureach and housing programs, gmd Board of Directors and volunteer projects

Operul

CHILDCARE FOQD PROGRAM 27 Cluld Care ilomes SENTH
Prowsdes renbursement for mezls and soachs fas participaring provider of boine Cluld care winl 96 Individuals S121.840 0
Head Stant Cenlers 115523 Meals Served S1440hs3
COASTAL BUSINESS INSTITUTE 18 lodividuals Operal S18.049 110

Fsarkess plan Ieanme s skl s networkaes and resource

als for micro-entrepreneurs

PUC REFRIGERATOR REPLACEMENT PROGHRAM hE}
Replacement uf ine e ators 11 coandination wilh Weatherizalion services %]

Honscholls
Individyaix

Cperaling
Dizect Service

Tital

4330000
SR AN
$22356.00

HOUSING ENERGY LAST LOAN OPTION [HELLDY B

Provides sitall fup o 13000 leans o ingame

Sle fanihes o cover housing repairs, 4

wluaing cosls, rehabelitanion, insurnes deduet Land healthysatery saues.

Households
Inddividuals

Diczct Service

NERM A

MARS LOAN PROC Y Inchividinals Lirert Senwe S IS b
Deterrad boun Tor ehnble semne cihzen horneowness Tor replacermen of o div wel

FOOD ASSISTANCE CONNECTING ELIGIBLE SENIGRS (FACES) AR 5 Clperating SLIT 8 UL
An assistance progeam o help Waldo Caunty sgnwore gitteens streteh ther toond baduer H12 Individuals

with Manmne's Foenl Stamp Program el other sonlable programs

GRAND TQTAL

£
=

™
%1

28200




Waldo Community Action Program
Statement of Revenues, Support and Expenditures
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

v v e PRDGRAMENFRUICES o - oo mimeee ‘s 5 — SUFPORTING SERY [CES oo
Tistad Mngoment Total
Faauly Community Hausing Trag Olher Program amd Supporting
Services Seruigys SR Soiga Geugrah Fundrabing Bervigey o
N AND UTHER SUPPORY
ke financial aesivunce N s I - s )
Siaig Dept. of Envinmmersal By s -3 3 s -8 Y 620070 & -y Y -8 ALEDM
Feleral Ememgency Manage s - 3 9300w § < Y - 5 wITI 3 3 5 . 'y 43700
1S Dept ol Heatih & Human 3 ouEme .8 . s s .y GLLSITO § B It Ly wmisnm
Stang Dept of Husmon Services § WRISO0 § Wswuam § B S Y TRV SR NIA UL (I Y GIT AW . s s PR
< -8 PR TR - s s P | TRID 5 s 3 ¥ TAM00
H « 8 . £ E ¥ -3 - 8 s > < N -
§ $ £ » 3 102KE 0§ 5 o2 350§ - s s . o2 Eg
s § BN S WANALI0 % 5 0 LRATIIN S P s $ 1086,
s 3 PRCALNT I § 3 3 L TRTTINS 8 HNA¥m $ . Y - s - 3
3 0ASIoD § 3 § Sleavhiy S Mim § et RTINS 1 . 4 I s
< EvRCRNE U1 [REEV U4 ERELNL Y 1A S 3745 M § . Ho0 3 - < - s g 3
< - £ Lismnpa 3 Y - 3 Jdean % 44500 < - 3 - s
$ RNTREY PR Y N . 5 - N - Y FIRITR AV TIN. § s - 3 - £y
< lissoG 8 2um 8 w8 mudpiia 8§ Msto TR eI T TR 4 N 3 . 1 - s
Tidal Revenue & Otner Suppaey S Lend R0 § TOTIRMIO0 S 4BlusEO0 § wIdaiiou 5 TOTISH0 ¢ 19SS & b N - S VLS00
g
Fees/MaineCare i
Cantribgtions
- PROUGHAM SFRV AN e S 25 -
Yozl Tstal
Family Huousing Trunsp e Progeaes wid Supparting
Services Soeviers Servieoy Serviges e Cceral Fundraising Sers o Tuial
EXPENDITURES
Sulsnes S SNleHlon s 69 TREDE € 994M8M 3 3 S L ITHTHSO0 8 IHanzio 8 ERRTRRTA NV VIR S ANE e O
Engloyee b § LTmuwe s 95§ 31 Ml S 7 3 s HIEBm 8 P RN TR $§ ENM§ 6T T 0
Crriraciil Servias $ 1mThmn $ aglon 2 MM 8 -8 [LETCTRG VI 1947400 5 § 19ATAON § 1RSSO
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Commrmable Supplics < L4 Jaton § 247 | S [V A TR HE ) 8 3 XSS TN $ UL S T4gE2IN
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TRANSPORTATION
Bus Schedule

—— Belfast Shopper  $1.00  Maooduy, Wednesday & Friday ——

Ussar o [RETRT —
S L1002 am —
1105 an =
/ it ERERT ] 1] am —_—
s Yabanm V1 am —
nagaille D5 am -
£ - Ui $:Neam —
Beirast 1 Sercet Marker [REE -
sackar Apa e [RERETIN -
Renv's Maz 10:03 am VIS am 2P
e Hanzlh 107 am | 1:3% am —
Mcbeod’s (8] [REETIET
Bl Ag [ 04 am 11:42 2m 5N
oxnrans Penabscon Shares 10: 16 as 1044 ape —
Huseegsn Carde 10210 am lafam -
WCOH 112 im 1050 am 138 pm
FommuRTTy ' e ([T [T —
Iction 11494 -
g o 1 - A V12 pm =
1.800_439_7865 1035 am L2:05% pm -
11 25 amm L2408 pm 1530 pmy
338-4769 -4 am 12014 pm J24% am
4R am | : L2449 pm
Beltar Coop 10:52 i 149 pan

Etfecthve lune 20, 2003

Waldo County's Transportation Program is funded in part by Waldo County people, the Maime Department of
Human Senvices and Department of Transportation WCTP has revived its Heet of handwcapped accessible
buses and vans by replacing six older vehicles i 2003 wih fow new <mall buses and two vans. WCTP's

bus schedule was redesigned to be more user [nendly to: WCTPS patrone Park and ride today for « new

experichee!

To Belfast From Belfast to:
Waterville, Augusta, Rockland, Bango
Whesndents Tray | bl o he .
. " by 5 S50
»PRUNSE Ry POk L ML HETURN LA BUS FARY i s
Rolfan LN 1O M) ey - FHUM N KETUILN BUS FARE
Wt EXTET VUM pan 150
Pt 1M 150
JEUUR:LY] kX1
Theslay 300 pm o & 3rd Mom, LRYi]
Feltaae Theibam Tuesday L=H) pm Ter & Ard Mon 3.00
Kiex Belfuse 11538 am T 954 am L0 Lot & 3id Moo, 280
Jackson Reltase 11300 am Tugaday [[IRETRT 1 -0E1 pim st & Ard Mon 2.5
Hroniks el ' LM am Tuesday
Wialde Belfast 845 am 1130 am Tuesday 1: 101 am 100 pm 2o & Ak Mon. 350
100 s dpd & Ath Mon 3.5
Belfar 1100 st | 0 Ind & 4th Mon. 325
Beifas (RST8] rul & 4th Mon 325
b 13063 pen h Mon. 3,29
11:40 am Libemv [REER-T Woath Moen 325
LM am Rulermio 1890 20d & 4th Mun 27§
1 _-‘., om T 100 pm 2ad X ard Tis
P10 pm 1.0 pan
2.3 pm T o
! Wednezday

Wednoday

WpdeFr
Wl Fr
12N Wed- I

Thursday 1E0 Frilay

Thusrskay 130

Thoutay ot Far resarvatlons:
SEaRE |I|::m|4v E:‘\. callby 4:30 pm two business days in advance
sl e Y i — 1-800-439-7865 - (207)338-4769
clmn hursday 208 e

(No rasarvallans needod lor Belfasy Snopper)




Waldo County SWCD
2003 Major Accomplishments

Sponsored two Waldo County High School Envirothon teams

Worked with Knox-Lincoln and Kennebec County SWCDs on the Mid-Coast
Regional Envirothon competition held at Unity College in which eleven high-school
teams competed with first, second and third place teams going on to the state
competition

Assisted in the state Envirothon competition for fifteen high school teams
Conducted a county-wide poster contest for grade school children to promote and
teach natural resource conservation. Awarded prizes for 1, 2., and 3™ place
winners at each grade level and a week at Tanglewood 4-H Camp and Leaming
Center for the county grand prize winner

Co-sponsored a multi county Farmlangd Protection public meeting

Conducted a septic tank installation workshop in partnership with DEP

Conducted a water use survey within Waldo County for Maine State Dept. of Ag.
Conducted a BMP workshop for maintenance of unpaved roads for local contractors
Honored outstanding conservationist of the year at the 2003 Annual Meeting/Banquet
Purchased and distributed educational material for sotl Stewardship Week, 2003
Assisted 215 individuals with technical assistance

90 individuals and units of government installed one or more conservation practices
Wrote 12 Environmental Quality Incentive Program (EQIP) contracts for county
dairy farmers to assist with manure storage construction, heavy use areas, fencing,
seeding and grazing projects.

Conducted fundraising projects with the annual Tree, Shrub and Trout sales.

Was awarded a $70,000 grant for the Unity Pond Watershed Improvement Project
through the Maine DEP and Maine Dept. of Ag
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the County Commissioners
County of Waldo
Belfast, Maine

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the County of Waido, Maine,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the general- purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-
purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The general-purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the general fixed asset account
group which should be included in order to conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The
amount that should be recorded in the general fixed asset account group is not known.

In our opinion, except for the effects on the general purpose financial statements of the omission
described in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all
material respects, the financial position of the County of Waldo, as of December 31, 2003, and the results
of its operations and cash flows of its trust funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financjal statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules in the table
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements of the County of Waldo, Maine. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in all material respects in relation to the financial statements of each of the respective individual
funds and account groups taken as a whole.

RHDL Snet 3 (wa
May 19, 2004

Proven Expertise and Integrity



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

STATEMENT A

Governmental Fiduciary Account
Fund Types Fund Type Group Total
General (Memorandum
General Agency Long-term Debt Only)
ASSETS N

Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,029,172 3 124,429 §$ - 5 1,153,601
Accounts receivable - 4255 - 4,255
Due from other governments 10,588 - - 10,588
Due from ather funds 39,048 - - 39,048

Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term debt - - 789,071 789,071
Total assets 3 1,078,808 $ 128,684 § 789,071 3 1,996,563

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 48027 3 - % -3 48,027
Due to other governmenis - 59,644 - 59,644
Due to other funds - 39,048 - 39,048
Deferred revenue 75,000 - - 75,000
Deposits held for others - 29,682 - 29,992
General cbhgation bonds payable - - 420,000 420,000
Liability for Maine State Retirement - - 227,041 227,041
Liability for compensated absences - - 142,030 142,030
Total liabihties 123,027 128,684 789.071 1,040,782
FUND EQUITY

Reserved for capial 207,562 - - 207,562
Reserved tor aclive accounts 91,913 - - 91,813
Reserved for restricted expenditures 181,403 - - 181,403
Unreserved - undesignated 474,803 - - 474,503
Total fund equity 955,781 - - 955,781
Totai lizbities and fund eguity 3 1,078,808 % 128,684 § 789071 § 1,996,563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Governmental
Fund sza.«
General
REVENUES
Propeny laxes 5 4523798
intergovemmental ravenues
State of Maine rent 65,823
County corractions 154,223
EMA 48,135
Charges for services / fees
Register of deads 380.975
Register of probate 52,247
Shenff department 19,048
Jau 11,458
Interes{ income 3,230
Reimbursements 18,248
Other revenue 15,192
Taotal revenue 5,302,377
EXPENDITURES
Distnet Court 49 843
£mergency management agency 78,691
District anomey 108,445
County commissioners 286.845
County reasurer 38,413
Courthouse 63,853
Jait 1,045 539
Register of deeds 211,984
Register of probate 157,428
Shesiff 853.053
Counly dispateh 566,587
Adventising/promation 6,500
Auditing 5,750
Debt service 87,000
inlerest 32,057
Extensian secvice 50,350
Employee benefits 839,580
Solliwater conservation 18,675
Transfers lo resarve 459.809
Totat expenditures 4.957.440
Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures 344937
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceedd on tax anticipation note 2,400.000
Payment of tax anticipation note {2,400,000)
Total other operatng sourcas (uses)
Excess of revenues angd other sources
over (under) expendilures and olher uses 344 937
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 877,410
increase in reserved fund balances (66,566)
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 955,781

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement

STATEMENT 8



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

STATEMENT OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

REVENUES

Property laxes

intergovemmental raveaues
State of Maine reni
County caorrections
EMA

Charges for services / fees
Register of deeds
Reqgister of probate
Sheritf depanment
Jait

Interesl income

Rembursements

Olher revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
District Count
Emergency managemenl agency
Oisinet attorney
County commissioners
County keasurer
Courthouse
Jail
Register of deeds
Reqister of probale
Sheriff
Commuaicalions Center
Adverising/promoton
Acditing
Debt service
interest
Extension servica
Employee Lenefits
Soiwaler conservation
Transfers o reserve

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures

OTHER OPERATING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of lax anlicipation note
Payment of tax anticipalion note

Totatl other operating sources (uses)

Excoass of revenues and other sources

over (ungder} expenditures and other uses

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

Net change in reserves

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Varlance
Budget Actual Favorable
(Unfavorabie)

3 4,523.796 S 4,523,798 .
84,136 65,823 1.687
75.000 154,223 79,223
38.39% 48,138 8,740

298,250 390.975 92,725
42,000 52,247 10,247
45,000 19,048 (25,952)
10,000 11,456 1,456
12,000 3.230 (8.770)

- 18,248 18,248

5,500 15,182 9.692
5,114,085 5,302,377 188,298
84,923 49,843 15,080
76,758 76,691 107

117,301 108,445 8.856

284,10% 286,845 (2.744)
42,950 36.413 8,537
74.241 63,853 10,588

1.047,633 1,045,538 2,094

212,562 211,884 578

183,961 157,436 6.525

847,122 853.053 (5.831)

605,680 568,567 39113

6,500 8,500 .
5.000 5.750 (750)
87,000 87,000 -
55,000 32,057 22,943
50,380 50,390 -

927,856 839,990 87 866
19,675 19,875 .

389.000 459,609 (70.809)

5,077,493 4,957 440 120,083
38.588 344,937 308.349
- 2,850,000 (2.850,000)
- (2,850.000) 2.850,000
8 36,588 344,937 308,349
677.410
(66,566)
3 955,781

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this stalement,

STATEMENT C



COUNTY OF WALDOQO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The County of Waldo was organized in 1827. The County operates under a County
Commissioner form of government.

The accounting policies of the County of Waldo conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units, except for the omission of
general fixed assets.

The County of Waldo applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements, except as noted in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
Proprietary funds and similar component units apply Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued
on or before November 20, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The financial statements of the County of Waldo have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies.

PRINCIPLES DETERMINING SCOPE OF REPORTING ENTITY

The financial statements of the County of Waldo consist only of the funds and account
groups of the County of Waldo. The criteria for including organizations as component
units within the County of Waldo’s reporting entity, as set forth in GAAP include
whether:

e The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)

The County of Waldo holds the corporate powers of the organization

The County of Waldo appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

The County of Waldo is able impose its will on the organization

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the
County of Waldo

o There is fiscal dependency by the organization of County of Waldo

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the County of Waldo has no component units.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounts of the County of Waldo are organized on the basis of funds or account
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each
fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues and expenditures or expenses as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounied for in individual funds
based upon the purposes for which they are allocated to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial
statements in this report, into generic fund types and broad fund categories as follows:



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which general governmental functions of the
County of Waldo are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the County of
Waldo expendable financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted
for in Proprietary Funds) are accounted for through Governmental funds.

General Fung — The general fund is the general operating fund of the County of Waldo
and accounts for all revenues and expenditures of the County of Waldo not encompassed

within other funds.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the Department in a trustee capacity or as an
agent on behalf of others. The Department’s fiduciary fund is a trust fund.

Trust and Agency Fund — Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by
the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other

governments, and / or other funds.

Account Groups

Account groups are used to establish accounting controls and accountability for the
County’s general long-term debt.

General Long-Term Debt account group ~ Long-term liabilities expected to be financed
from governmental funds are accounted for in the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group, not in governmental funds,

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized
in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting is related to
the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they become
measurable and available as net current assets. Property taxes are recorded as revenue
when Jevied even though a portion of the taxes may be collected in subsequent years,
Miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until actually received. Intergovernmental revenues, and interest income
are accrued when their receipt occurs soon enough afier the end of the accounting period
so as to be both measurable and available.



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e. net total assets)
is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund
type operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses)
in net total assets. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the proprietary fund
type. Under this basis of accounting revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when the related liability is incurred.

REPORTING ENTITY

The County of Waldo, Maine is the basic level of government, which has financial
accountability, and control over all activities related to the County of Waldo. The County
of Waldo is not included in any other governmenta! “reporting entity” as defined by
GASB 14. In addition, there are no component units as defined in GASB 14, which are
required to be included in the County of Waldo ’s reporting entity

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund type and similar trust
funds consider all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The County accrues a liability for compensated absences, which meet the following
criteria:
1. The County’s abligation to employees’ rights to receive compensation for
future absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered
2. The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate.
3. Payment of compensation is probable.
4. The amount can be reasonably estimated.

In accordance with the above criteria the County has recorded a liability for one half of
the accumulated sick pay, which has been earned but not taken by County employees.
The County has recorded the Liability for compensated absences in the general long-term
debt account group, since it has taken the position that none of the liability will be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The liability as of December
31,2003 was. $142,030.

ENCUMBRANCE ACCOUNTING

The County of Waldo does not employ encumbrance accounting; under which purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in
order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED

REVENUE RECOGNITION ~ PROPERTY TAXES

The County’s property tax assessment is levied and recognized annually on the
assessment values for each municipality located in the county. Assessment values are
established for each munjeipality by the State.

ﬁESERVES

The County of Waldo records reserves to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is
legally segregated for a specific future use, which is indicated by the title of each reserve.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The County of Waldo utilize a formal budgetary accounting system to control revenues
and expenditures accounted for in the County of Waldo® general fund. The budget is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting that is consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. The budget is established in accordance with various
laws, which govern the County of Waldo’ operations.

Appropriations for the general fund generally lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except
for certain designated balances.

TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The total columns presented in the combined financial statements are captioned
“memorandum only” to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. No consolidating entries or other eliminations were made in the aggregation of
the totals, thus, they do not present consolidated information and do not purport to
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

DEPQOSITS

The County of Waldo ’s deposits are categorized as follows to give an indication of the
level of risk assumed by the County of Waldo at year end: Category | includes deposits
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the County of Waldo or
by the County of Waldo ’s agent jn the County of Waldo ’s name; Category 2 includes
uninsured deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent in the County of Waldo ’s name; Category 3 includes uninsured and
uncollateralized deposits. At December 31, 2003, cash and cash equivalents consisted of

Category
Carrying Bank 1 2 3
Amount Balance
Checking/savings
accounts $1,153,601  $1,227,867 $247,695 $521795 3458377

8



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES / PAYABLES

General fund: Receivable Payable
Agency funds: $39,048 $ -
Total 39,048 -

Agency fund: Receivable Payable

General fund - 30,048
Total | - $39,048
LONG-TERM DEBT
A summary of general long-term debt is as follows:
Description Balance Tssued Balance
January 1, (Retired) December 31,
2003 2004
General obligation bond
Union Trust Co. 5.625%
Communications Center
bond due in annual
instaliments of principal
and interest through July $480,000 $(60,000) $420,000
0f 2010
The following is a summary of bond principal maturities:
Year ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2004 $60,000 §$23,690 $83,690
2005 60,000 20,250 80,250
2006 60,000 16,875 76,875
2007 60,000 13,560 73,500
2008 60,000 10,125 70,125
2009 60,000 6,750 66,750
2010 60,000 3,400 63,400
Total _ 8420000 §94,590  $514,590
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7.

COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS

The County participates in the Maine State Retirement System Consolidated Plan for
Participating Districts, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan. The Maine State Retirement System is a body corporate and politic and an
incorporated public instrumentality of the State. Under Title S M.R.S.A. the System is
the administrator of retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The System issues a financial
report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Consolidated Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Maine State
Retirement System, Two Central Plaza, Augusta, Maine 04333-0046, or by calling -
800-451-9800. The funding policy is as follows: Plan members are required to
contribute 6.5% of their annual covered salary and the County is required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 2.8% of annual covered payroil plus a
monthly TUUAL cost per month of $892. The contribution requirements of the plan
members and the County are established by the Maine State Retirement System Board of
Trustees. The County’s annual covered payrotl for the current year was $1,214,618. The
County’s contribution for the current year was $34,017, plus the [UUAL contribution of
10,704. The employee contribution was $87,320.

RESERVED FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The County had the following balances in reserve for capital expenditures at December
31,2003:

Vehicle — emergency replacement $12,747
Jail / sheriff / facility 39,991
Bridge fund 38,127
Courthouses 17,852
Facilities - all other 8,004
Emergency shelter 2,775
Hazmat — LEPC 15,000
Technology 35,474
Probate/ Deeds/ DA 37,592
Total $207,562

RESERVED FOR ACTIVE ACCOUNTS

The County had the following active reserve accounts as of December 31, 2003:

Employment security $17,795
LEPC 1,570
Equipment service 14,548
Contingency $0,000
Severance 8,000
Total $91,913

10
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COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

RESERVED FOR CONTINGENCY

Title 30-A, Section 922, Maine Revised Statutes Annotated of 1964 provides that a
counfy can establish a contingency account not to exceed $50,000. This fund may be
used at the discretion of the county commissioners for emergency purposes only. The
contingency account balance was $50,000 as of December 31, 2003, This reserve has
been included in the active reserve balances.

RESERVED FOR RESTRICTED USES

The County had the following balances carried for restricted uses at December 31 2003:

Electronic monitors $2,150
Drug forfeiture 11,913
Deeds surcharge 91,366
Community corrections 59,180
Detail 16,789
Records preservation 5
Total $181,403

LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS

Budgets are prepared for the general fund of the County.

As of December 31, 2003 the County’s general operating budgets were over expended by
the following amounts:

Department Amount Comments

District Attomey $7,864 Witness fees, capital, telephone
County Commissioners 2,744 Advertising, professional fees
Sheriff 5,931 Vehicle repairs

Auditing 750

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITTMENTS

The County of Waldo currently has pending litigation. It is not feasible to predict or
determine the outcome of the litigation at this time. Therefore, no provision has been
made in the financial statements for these contingencies. The County is also liable to the
Maine State Retirement System for amounts due for prior year employer and employee
service. This amount has been recorded in the general long-term debt account group. It
will be budgeted for and paid for in two more installments and will be paid off in January
of 2003.

The County participates in various intergovernmental grant programs, which may be
subject to future compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly,
the County’s compliance with applicable grant requirements may be established at some
future date. The amount if any, of any liabilities arising from the disallowance of
expenditures or incligibility of grant revenues cannot be determined at this time.



COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

PROFPERTY VALUATION, ASSESSMENT AND
APPROPRIATIONS - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Assessed Valuation

Tax Commitment

Total assessment at $17.53 per thousand

Reconciliation of Commitment with Appropralion
Current year tax commiiment, as above
Estimated revenues
Fund balance / rounding

Appropriations per original budget

Overlay

Total appropriations

Taxes assessed by town
Beifast
Belmont
Brooks
Burnham
Frankfort
Freedom
siesboro
Jackson
Knox
Liberty
Lincolnville
Monroe
Montville
Morrill
Northport
Palermo
Prospect
Searsmont
Searsport
Stockton Springs
Swanville
Thorndike
Troy
Unny
Waldo
Winterport
Unorganized - LaSalle and Little Bermuda

SCHEDULE 1

258,060,000

4,523,798

4,523,796
590,000
_(431)

5,113,365

(35.872)

5,077,493

1,064,860
62,319
67,228
91,419
76,518
45,403

531,334
36,900
56,008

113,419

381,365
80,988
71,873
63,985

321,764

144 008
44,088

147,165

283,453

167,324

109,563
54,608
56,359

118.768
65,738

256,289

1,052

4,523,796

12
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SCHEDULE 5

COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Approprlations  Expenditures Variance
DISTRICT COURT
Personnel $ 12282 § 12,282 § -
Repairs maintenance 16,000 6.819 9,181
Cleaning / maintenance 13,266 14 250 {S84)
Utilties 8.500 7,087 1,413
Fuel 5,500 4222 1,278
Maintenance supplies 3,200 1,786 1,414
Heating / electrical repairs 2,900 1,465 1.435
Snow / rubbish removal/other 3,275 1,932 1,343
Totals 64,923 49,843 15,080
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
Personnel 51,468 51,588 (120)
Travel 2,500 2,087 413
Ulilities 6,100 5,390 710
Telephone 2,300 2,789 (489)
Repairs 3,000 4939 {1,939)
Fuel 2,075 1,821 254
All supplies 3,378 2,974 401
Capital oullay 3,970 3,970 -
Other expenses 2,010 1,133 877
Tolals 76,798 76.691 107
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Personnel 77,501 78,158 (655)
taboratory, medical 5,400 3,258 2,142
Consulting 5,200 4,953 247
Telephone 6.000 8,600 (2.800)
Transcripis/mileage 2,400 2,680 (280)
Contracted equipment 2,400 1,543 857
Office supplies/postage 3,900 3,602 298
Witness fees 6,000 10,538 (4,538)
Statutes/education 1,500 1,977 (477)
Capital outtay 2,050 5,711 (3.667)
Other expenses 4,950 4,147 803
Totals 117,301 125,165 (7,864)
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SCHEDULE 5

PAGE 2
COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Appropriations  Expenditures Variance
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Personnel 87,901 85,588 2,313
Professional services 13,000 16,913 (3,913)
Liability insurance 62,000 60,854 1,346
Dues 3,780 3,608 174
Telephone 3,000 1,637 1,483
Training / education / statutes 2,300 1,417 883
Mileage, meals, lodging 4 500 3,627 873
Office supplies 2,950 2,377 573
Printing / postage 1,800 1,154 648
Capital outlay 89,670 99,628 42
Other expenses 3,200 10.344 (7,144)
Totals 284,101 286,845 (2,744)
COUNTY TREASURER
Personnel 33,000 31,130 1,870
Office supplies 2,400 1,487 903
Printing / engraving 2,000 988 1,012
Equipment repair 2,000 170 1,830
Other expenses 3,550 2,628 922
Totals 42,950 36413 6,537
COURTHOUSE
Personnel 12,282 12,282 -
Repairs 31,200 24,209 6,991
Utilities 9,200 7,522 1,678
Fuel 9,000 7,003 1,997
Cleaning / maintenance 6,534 7,100 (566)
Supplies 3,860 3,747 53
Telephon / other 2,225 1,790 435
Totals 74,241 63,653 10,588
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COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS - GENERAL FUND

JAIL
Persannel
Board
Medical and medical supplies
Food
Ulilities
Fuel
Grounds / maintenance
Maintenance / supplies
Uniforms-officers and inmates
Vehicle expense
Telephone
Training / statutes / reference

Capital autlay
Other expenses

Totals

REGISTER OF DEEDS
Personnel
Microfilming
Postage
Repairs
Printing
Telephone
Binding / rebinding
Office supplies

Capital outlay
Other expenses

Totals

PROBATE COURT

Personnel / court appointments
Printing / postage

Travel, meals, lodging

Office supplies

Telephone

Publications / notices / dues
Periodicals/subscriptions/reference

Capital outlay
Supplies / other

Tolals

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Appropriations  Expenditures Variance
702,764 763,956 {61,192)
90,000 73,045 16,955
74,000 55,470 18,530
45,000 47,573 (2,573)
21,000 19,555 1,445

7,500 6,456 1,044
20,000 22,138 (2,138)
15,188 13,451 1,737

8,700 7,261 1,439

6,000 7,454 (1,454)

6,032 3,076 2,956

3,000 1,653 1,347
42,613 18,658 23,955

5,836 5793 43

1,047,633 1,045,539 2,094
110,058 103,596 6,462
55,000 58,727 (4,727)

3,500 3,015 485

4,300 3,523 777

3,300 3.794 (494)

2,000 2,293 (283)

2,000 590 1,010

1,500 1,668 (168)
28.179 30,774 (2,595)

2,725 2.604 121

212 562 211,984 578
129,524 123,581 5,943

3,550 3,790 (240)

4650 3,562 1,088

2,400 1,472 928

2,028 1,59¢ 426

2,420 2,148 271

2,135 1,605 530
15,000 16,124 (1,124)

2,257 3,554 (1,297)

163,961 157,436 6.525

SCHEDULE 5§

PAGE 3
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SCHEDULE §
PAGE 4

COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMS8ER 31, 2003

Appropriations  Expenditures Variance
SHERIFF
Personnel 596,732 598,612 {1.880)
Vehicle repairs 56,000 68,224 (12,224)
Telephone 24,000 23,316 684
Office / maintenance supplies 14,000 14 855 (BSS)
Utilities / fuel 8,200 6,111 2,089
Travel 6,000 5,607 393
Uniforms / badges 11.400 12,029 (629)
Maintenance 4,500 3,477 1,023
Training / supplies / periodicals 10,500 8,414 2,088
Capital outlay 111,137 108,707 2,430
Other expenses 4853 3,701 952
Totais 847,122 853,053 (5931
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
Personnel 506,822 496 923 9,899
Telephane 13,500 11,813 1,687
Dtilities 13,350 11,983 1,367
Supplies / training / uniforms 8,400 7,745 855
Radio / facility repairs / maintenance 12,925 22,197 (9,272)
Upgrade 5,633 4,023 1,610
Capitat outlay 35,200 4,090 31,110
Other expenses 9,850 7,793 2,057
Totals 605,680 566.567 39.113
ADVERTISING / PROMOTION 6,500 6,500 -
AUDITING 5,000 5,750 (750)
DEBY SERVICE -
Principal 60,000 80,000
Interest 27,000 27,000
Totals 87,000 87.000
INTEREST - TAN 55.000 32,057 22,943
WALDO COUNTY EXTENSION OFFICE
Conlractual 39,685 39,665
Commodities / capital 10,725 10,725 -
Tolals 50.390 50.350 -
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SCHEDULE §
PAGE 5

COUNTY OF WALDO, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Appropriations  Expenditures Variance
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Health insurance 613,456 557,576 55,880
Retirement / annuity 24,000 9,761 14,238
Maine State Retirement 50,000 40,714 4,286
MSRS - Insurance 10,000 9,588 412
Fica taxes 180,000 186,203 (6,203)
Workers compensation 50,000 36,056 13,944
Discrettonary 200 92 108
Totals 927.658 839,950 87.666
SOIL / WATER CONSERVATION 19,675 19,675 -
TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Emergency shelter 1,000 1,000 -
Hazmat/ LEPC 15,000 15,000
Employment security 10,000 10,000
Technology 35,000 35,000 -
Equipment service 8,000 8,000 -
Future facilities, land, buildings 35,000 35,000 -
Severance 8,000 8,000 -
County planning 60,000 60,000 -
Maine State Retirement 217,000 217,000 -
Totals 389,000 389.000 -
$ 5077,493 § 4,903,551 % 173,842
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